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Darrow’s Plea to the Jury for the Life of Adams

Your Homor, Gentlemen of the Jury:

I hive been somewhat jinterested
and possibly amused at what I sup-
pose was the argument that has

eded me in this case. Mr., Knight

told you how young and inexper-
fenced he is. I think his argument
shows it; still we all learn some things
in the books before we begin practie-
ing law. Amonget those we learn that
a proseeutor should tell in a plain,
straightforward way, what he “thinks
are the reasons—what he thinks is the
evidence—that finds the defendant
guilty.

A defendant pleading for a man’s
life may be excused for some things;
he often goes further®than he ought.
I do, many Rimes, Many times I
regret it. But if you are pleading
for a man’s life you ean be exeused;
but if you are trying to take it away,
that is another thing,

A prosecutor should be judicial; he
should be fair. The defendant has
no chance to talk, his lips are sealed.
You may eall him a dastardly cowarl
and a eriminal, he ean say nothing
about it. He is there to wait to find
out whether twelve men are to tie a
rope around his neck, and that is all
there is about it. And it is the ducy
of a prosecutor, if 1 understand it,
not to beg for a verdiet, as Mr, Knight
has so pitiously begged, before this
jury. hy, one woud almost believe
that Mr. Kunight would mnever have
another case in the world unless he
got Steve Adams hanged; he talks
as if he would not. 1 never heard
anybody beg for a verdict the way he
begged in this ease. Now, if it would
help Knight's law practice, Steve has
stood a good deal, and I suppase he
could stand this. We have not heard
any analysis of the evidence; we have
not heard any discussion of the facus,
We have heard the words ‘‘dastard’’
and “‘eriminal’’, and we have heard
talk of the ‘‘greatest’’ and ‘‘worst’’
and ‘‘blackest’’ eriminal act ever per-
formed in the history of the world

If you had eut ‘‘dastard’’ out of
Mr. Knight’s speech I dont believe ho
would have made one.

Mistreatment of Adams

I don't think that is the way
& defendant should be treated. This
defendant had been treated badly
enough, God knows, before he got
into this ecourt; and, as 1 say,
and as the lawr says, and as
your own sense and justice would

say, a man in defending may be for-
given much; he may be intemperate
in his language; he may go beyond
- what he ought. But in the prosecu-
tiom it is another thing.

It is just as much murder to tie a
rope around the neck of a man, under
the guise of law, if he has not ben

roven guilty, as it is to shoot him in
he head; and a man who would eare-
lessly and lightly do it has just as
much to answer for,

You have every proof, we are told
by Mr. Knight, that Adams is the
worst man on the face of the earth.
You would think Steve Adams did
not need any lawyer at all, he did
not need ue to defend him; he counlld
have come into this court with detee-
tive McParland and the counsel for
the State and his rights would have
been well preserved.

Gentlemen, 1 eannot agree with Mr,
Knight, I think if ever a man needed
a lawyer SBteve Adams has needed one,
and 1 am not here to dodge any re
sponsibilities in this case or to deny
any of the faects in this case or to
deny who is defending him. There
is a powerful organization on both
si and Steve Adams is mighty
lueky that he has got somebody to

y the expenses of his trial or else
E: would be ground to pieces by the
power of the state,

A Great Knight

I cannot attempt to follow all that
Mr. Knight has said. He has quoted
from some suthorities that are un-
familiar to me; he has quoted from
the Bible dnd Shakespeare. 1 have
heard of these. He said something
about Nietzsche; I suppose Nietzsche
is some man that lives up at Wallace
whom I never met before, so I will
have to Nietzsche. He sems to be
familiar with him. I have not eriti-
cized Mr. Knight's grammar or his
English. If I were to give my opin-
jon, T would say that has been about
all there was to his argument, the

mar and the English. Mr, Knight

as told you that we are up here in a
rural town amongst farmers; and I
suppose the inference would be that
grammar and English would not be
specially needed up hers, in what HNe
cnemterlm as an obscure town,

Now, so far as I am concerned, I
want to argue this case upon the facts
us they are before this jury plainly
in as stfuightforwalrd a ‘way as 1
ean. | want to take the facts of this
ease, and I want the jury to remember,
as 1 know they will, that a man’s
life is at stake in this trial,

Mr. Knight has informed you that
this is more than a mere murder ease.
Now, I don’t know exaetly what that
means; I don’t know exactly what he
means by ‘‘a mere murdor case’’. TIf
there is anything on earth that is
higher or more important than a mere
murder case T don’t know what it is,
I never have found it, T never under
stand it.

Here is a ease where you twelve men
are charged with the responsibility of
saying whether one of your fellow
citizens shall live or die, If you ean
get any greater rosponsibility, gentle-
men, Idont know what it is. 1 would
not take it. T would not take the re-
sponsibility that you twelve men have,
‘Ilhnra is nothing any more important
than ‘‘a mere murder ease'’,

The Real Issue
But, Mr, Knight says, yon are not
trying a mere murder ecase, you are
trying republican institutions, to wsee
whether tge Republie is safe,

Well, now, T have got an idea that

the Republic will jog along if this | County, he made an affidavit that the
jury in this ‘‘obscuretown’’ should go|people of his county were so preju-
It has survived | diced that the State could not get a
some time over a good many mistakes | fair trial at home, and he turned the
| job over to you.

wrong in this case.

of juries and a good many mistakes of
Judges, and I think it would jlc? along
anyhow. It might hurt Mr,
law business but not hurt the Repub
lie.

I eant understand how a Republican

form of government is on trial, as Mr. | cute an
is , abount
Mr. Knight says | the man who loves law, in those days,

Knight has said,
on trinl for his life.
the case is broader than simply a Ques-

Btove Adams

tion of whether Adams killed Tyler. | Probably taking a fee from somebody | Hawley, Spccial Prosecutors, and An-
There's some truth in that, and it is, |else, Where was Mr, Hanson? Where|gus Sutherlund, the Sheriff of Sho-
Mr. Knight says we claim that it isin | was the State’s attorney? Where was|shone County,—all of these men of
some way econnected with what might | Mr. Gyde?t Where was everybody?!power and influence - and position,
be ecalled reform movements, In a An_\:hml‘v after I‘lelh-l\."lq slayers? Any- with the State Tr asury of Idaho at
way that is true. Not that the ques | body trying to track the men who | their command, had this statement or
tion of whether Steve Adams killed | killed Tyler? Anybody interested in'‘‘confession’” about the death of |
Tyler is”in anyway connected with it; the law Anybody interested in this' Tyler in Felruary, 1906, and they di-ll
not that. But we eclaim that from |poor old woman—who has been not even send a word to his bereaved
beginning to the end the prosecution decked up and dressed ap and fixed ! mother. She never heard about it

of . Steve Adams is a humbug and a
fraud; that there is not a particle of
honesty, a particle of econscience or
n particle of justice in the prosecution,
from beginning to the end. We are

not trying Steve Adams for murder;

he is placed on trial for his life before
an ldaho jury bgeause he dared go
back on MeParland., That is what he
is on trinl for, not for murder.

The State through its o..cinls has
been playing with this man's life;
they have been playing with it as
a cat would play with a mouse.

and his feelings and his family as
pawns upon the board to play a game.
And I will show it to you so vou all
know it.

Dares State to Hang Adams

If Steve Adams was tried in this
court, or if any one was tried, for
the murder of Fred Tyler, well and
good; there would be nothing to it,
excepting what Mr. Knight charaeter-
ized as a mere murder case. But that
is not the issue in this case, as Mr.
Knight has well said, and Steve
Adams is mnot tried for that.

Every species of beggary, every
species of artifice, every species of in-
genuity, every sort of stage-setting
and elap-trap has been paraded before
this jury to get it to render a verdict
against Bteve Adams. What for? Do
you think they want to hang him? 1
say to you, gentlemen, find him guilty
if you will, the State of Idaho does not
dare hang Steve Adams,

Do you mean to tell me that Gover-
nor Gooding, Senator Borah, Mr. Haw-
ley and MeParland would dare take
a poor ignorant man like Steve Adams
and beguile him and coax him and
threaten him and use him, and then
tie a rope around his neek? Oh no.
I am not worried about Steve Adams’
life. There is not a man in the bunch
that would think of deing it, or would
ever dare do it. If the o..cials of
this state, charged with the prosecu-
tion of eases would dare take a man’s
life whom they had petted, feasted,
associated with, eared for and used and
got his evidence, and then hang him,
they would put a blot and a stain upon
the Btate of Idaho which could never
be washed away. No! No! No! 1
am not afraid of that, and that is not
the game.

Now, let us take a few of the facts
of this ease, and let us see to what
extent the State has gone. Not to
hang him; that is not the game. No.
They believed if they could keep this
man under their thumb that MeParland
could use him to hang Haywood. And
they eould not. And they now think
if this {ury should put a noose arounl
his neck, that they may use him still
to hang Pettibone or Moyer, That is
a beautiful job, that is turned over
to & Kootenai County jury by the of-
ficers of Bhoshone county and the
prosecutors of the Btate, and that it
all there is to this ecase. Now let me
see whether I am right.

€Crocodile Tears

Mr, Knight has been shedding some
tears over Mrs. Thomas the mother
ot Fred Tyler. Now I don’t want to be
misunderstood in this matter, There
is not any man who does not feel sorry
for Mrs. Thomas—the most pathetic
figure in this trial to any man—and
:0 nl_: have theﬂllal;uliuulnet; do:n

n we 'eel sorry for her
a:?if .'uimd’ in this case, on either
side could do anything to bring back
her son everybody knows they would
do it. BShe is a mother, like other
mothers and has a mother’s feeling
and a mother’s grief,

But when, gentlemen of the jury,
did the State develop their strong in-
terest in Mrs. Thomas? When did
they commence to shed their tears
over this mother's sorrow? Every
tear they shed is a erocodile tear,
and they care no more for Mrs
Thomas than they do for Steve Adams.
Let us see whether they do or not.

I have been censured by Mr. Knight
beeause T said that when the death
of Bouley was heralded through the
woods amongst the homesteaders it
wns weleome news. Bo it was, Now
I am not here to split hairs as to
whether the homesteaders did right
or wrong in welcoming this news.

I have not got any homestead up
there; T have not suffered because
some man permitted himself to bhe used
by a great lumber corporation to
drive out the homesteaders, Until 1
have, I am not in a position to judge
of it, but the faects are plain in this
case that there was not a man in the
whole Marble Creek Jdistriet that did
not rejoiee when Bouley was dead.
They rejoleed just as they would if
a mad dog had been killed, and vou
know it, and they know it.

No Interest Shown
But let us see, Mr, Angus SBuather-
landy who, was Sheriff of Shoshone

County when Rouley was killed—a
man who has heen hot on the trail
of poor Btéve Adams, and who has

moved heaven and earth to eonviet
him, when he failed over in Shoshone

night's |

They |
have considered his body and his soul

| hones,

He was there when
Bouley was killed and was Sheriff,
charged with enforcing the law; he
was sheriff very soon after Tyler dis
appeared; ho was sheriff when this
skeleton was dug up. Did he prose-
inquiry? Did he do anything
it? Where was Mr, Knight,

when these murders were committed?

up, so that you people will hang n!.\'llhml_v even deigned to write her a
discov- | letter, until

man. When some bones wer
ered in August 1905, and they were|
believed to be Tyler's bones, did any. |
|l"r|‘\' send word to his mother? Ind |
they even buy her a erepe veil?

they care? I wonder, gentlemen,
whether anybody ever saw a case with
such elap-trappery and j humbuggery

us this sinee the world began?! Did
they try to learn who the mother was,
or the sister, or send them even a let-
ter?

We won't stop there. That was in
1905, in July or August—and I am
not speaking of the motker now—but
the officers of the state took those
without preservirg one single
partiele of evidence; they threw away
the shoes; they threw away the fin-
ger; they preserved nothing, and they
bundled them up, with some more old
clothes and dumped them in  the
ground, in a e¢offee box. And now
they talk about how they love this
mother; talk about it so vou jurors
will kill Steve Adams. That is why
they talk about it,

Let us go a step further. Nobody
paid any attention to this find up in
the woods. Bouley was dead, and
they were glad of it. They did not
hold an inquest over him—not even
an inquest. The Sheriff did not ecare,
the Coroner did mnot ecare. Nobody
ecared. Some bones were found that
were supposed to be Tyler's, and they
were glad about it, and they did not
hold an inquest over those bones, and
they did not preserve a single serap
of evidence they had, and they buried
him in the ground and he was for-
gotten. Where were the officers of the
law, gentlemen? What were these law-
vers and this sheriff, who shed these
tears over Mrs. Tyler, doing then?
You know what they were doing.
They were glad of it. Remember, some
of them held homesteads themselves;
they were glad to get rid of the man
Bouley, who was up there leading in
man after man to take the fruits of
the labor and the privation and the
toil of the homesteaders, who had gone
out in the wilderness to make homes
for themselves and their families,
You know that, and everybody econ-
neeted with this case knows it.

Activity Begun
But let us go a step further than

that. A big man was killed, a man
who had once been Governor of the
State. Now, I have a belief that one

man's life is worth just as muech as
another, Steve Adams’ life is worth
just as much to him as anybody else’s
life is worth to them, and his de-
serves the same protection as every
other man’s life, and the same effort
should have been made to find the mur-
derer of Gov. SBteunenberg, Fred Tyler
and Bouley as to find the murderer.
But, notice the difference, gentlemen.
When Governor Steunenberg was killed
then Heaven and earth and hell - :re
ransacked—not to find the murderer,
oh mno, not that, but to econviet the
officers and important members of the
Western Federation of Miners. When
Tyler and Bouley were killed, one of
them was buried beside the trail with
his dog and his horse, and the other
in the Potter’s Field, and no sheriff
and mo coroner ever held an inquest

on the remains, or sought to arrest
any body, and no lawyer laid down his
book long enough to bri a prose-
cution against any human being.

Now that is the difference in this
land of ‘‘equality’’. Mr., Kn says
:t :a the greatest on earth.

t s

But that is not all. After Gover
nor Steunenberg was killed, the of-
ficers arrestedd & man, and them th
sent out for Steve Adams, Nw.ql
will discuss Bteve™ ““confession’’
Mittle later. 1 just want to get an
other faet before this jury. And see
whether T tell you anything that is
not true in this whole ecase,

Turned Over to Father Confessor

They brought Steve Adams to
Boise, to the ‘penitentiary, although
he had never been econvieted of any-
thing, and there they turned him into
the cell with Harry Orchard, and
turned him over to the tender mercios

of this wonderful man—who Mr.
Knight says ds practiealy a Saint,
and who has been an enemy or n

traitor to crime, this great preacher
of modern days, Detective James
M Parland, they turned Adams over to
him, Now, T will discuss MeParland
when I get to him.

But they got the econfession from
Steve Adams, and they got that con
fossion on the 2Tth day of February,
1008, and that confession said that
Steve Adams murdered Tyler, and
that he murdeéred Bouley, and the con-
fession further said that Mason and
Glover helped him kill Tyler; that
(lover and Bimpkins and a settler up
helped him kill Bouley. They got that
confession on the 27th day of Febru-
ary, it was put into the hands of
the Governor, into the hands of the
lawyers for the prosecution and into
the hands of the Bheriff of Shoshone

Did |

County. Then what did they do? Did

the mother of the murdered mant
they go and hunt up poor Mrs. Thomas,
Did they go to dry her tears and settle
her doubts? Did they write her a let
ter? Did they eare a continental
whether Tyler ever had a mother, or
a father, or a sister, or a brother, or
who he wius!? Now, you know, gentle-
men, whether I am telling this straight

or not. The Governor of the State of
Idaho, the Great Deteetive of the
Pinkerton Ageney, James MePurland
—forty venrs a sleuth—a Senator of |

the United States (Mr. Borah), Mr. |

they wanted to hold Steve
Adams in their elutehes, and then
they sent her word in September to
eome down Wallace and testify.

More than that, gentlemen, Let us

to

see what there is in this ecase. That
Hoonfession'' said that Mason and
Glover were guilty of murder; that
Heonfession said that another man,

who was and is running at
settler up here in the woods was
guilty of murder. Did they send out
to apprehenl those murderers? They
got this information in February,
1906, Did  any of these numerous
Sleuths or lawyers or officers make any
investigation or attempt to catch the
other man? Did they care one con-
tinenth] who killed Fred Tyler, or
who killed Ed. Bouley? Or was every
single act a fraud, and were they
working simply to conviet somebody
else?! You know the truth; every-
body knows it. In February, 1906,
they were told who had committed
these murders, and not a man raised
his hand or his voiee until SBeptember
1806, when Steve Adams applied for
a writ of Habeas Corpus to get out
of the penitentiary., Then, they got
busy, didn't they? Got busy for what?
To find the slayer of Tyler, to find
the slayer of Bouley? Oh, no, not that
at all. We are told there is nothing
against Alvin Mason, although Mr,

night, for the prosecution, informed
us at the last trial of this case in Wal-
lace, that he would prosecute Alvin
Mason as soon as he was done with
this case, He is a little slow about it.
They did not get busy to avenge the
death of Bouley; they did not get
busy to avenge the death of Tyler;
they diu wot get busy to finl out whe
was guilty of the murder of these men,
but they got busy to try to hang
Steve Adams.

Now, gentlemen, is there any doubt
about this?

Late Mournings

Go a step further. We have been
given ecertain reasons for believing
that Tyler was dead, and that it was,
his skeleton that was found in the|
Marble Creek Country. I dont know |
whether it was his skeleton or not;|
there are reasons for and there are
reasons against believing it. Did the]
mother believe it was her son’s skel-
eton? She ought to know as much|
about it as any one., She is the one
who pared his feet, who said the soles)
were thiek; she is the one who said
he hurt his finger playing base ball.
Did she believe it was his skeleton?
Yet, this skeleton was found in July
or August, 1805, and her husband and
two of her sons—in—law were there,
and they went with it to the Head
of Navigation, and they returned and
told her about it. Now, I am not
going to find fault because she did
not go to Wallace, but, gentlemen,
I cannot help thinking that it is a
little strange that a mother, who did
not even take the pains to plant one
flower over her boy’s grave, or make
one visit to her son’s gave or buy one
erepe vell to mourn his death, should
come here to this courtroom so heavily
laden with mourning, three years after

it is E.-d and gone, and when »a
asked to

large, o

Jury Il Steve Adams.
Do you think there is anything stran
about it? Is this real grief that

paraded here, or it is the trappings
of the theater, that are brought into
this Court of Justice in order to get
you to do a job which they ecannot
get done over in Shoshone County,
where the thing bappened?

Now, that is not all. This woman,
this mother, might have still hoped
and when that body was discovered
that it was not her son's. But she was
written to in September, 1006, and todl
that Adams had ‘‘confessed’’, and she
came down to the hearing in Sept-
Saptamber, 1906, and between Feb-
rusky and Segtember pf that year
not & word had been said to her by
any of these men—who so loved the
law and who so love justice! Not a
word! Bhe had been left alone. She
was written to in September to come
down to Wallace and testify—not to
wee her son’s remains, not to come
down to assist in giving him a decent
burial, but to come down and help eon-
viet Steve Adams, that was what she
wns written for: and she eame and
heard the ‘‘confession’’, and she tes
tified and went back home; but she
did not even buy a crepe veil in Wal
lnce. She had not then begun to be
so certain about her son's death that
she would wear mourning.

Adams' Life a Pawn

But the trial eame up in February,

1006, and she came to Wallace in her
regular elothes;
after her son was dead she eame to
Whallaee, and while she was still there |

at the trial, attending the trial she |
bought erepe and mourning for the
courtroom and has got it on now,

Now, gentlemen, do you think that is
““fixed up’’'?! Let me say this: The

prosecution are soo anxious to get a
rope around Steve Adams' neck that
they have been willing to play with

him, they have been willing to use his
life a8 a pawn; they have been willing
to drive him, hither and vonder, over
the length and breadth of the land:
they have been willing to play with
him, as a eat would play with a mouse;
tl:w_v have been willing to trifle with
his feelings and affection; they have
been willing to trifle with his -fa:uil_\'.
his wife and his children, and they
have been willing to take a mother’s
love and a mother’s tears and a
mother's sorrow and a mother’s
mourning and work those up into the
coin of the realm, that they might
tie & rope mround Steve Adams’ neck.
They are using this mother, they are
using these feelings, they are .uning
these sentiments to get a verdiet, and
they care as muoch about her as they

did for Fred Tyler's remains, or the

Bouley was killed; and you gentlemem
know it.

Defending Their Homes

These sturdy settlers up there in
the Marble Creek district may be bad
men. Poor oll Mason, the
father of eight children, who came up
here into the Idaho wilderness, whose
sole possession wns a wife and seven
children, and who Mr. Knight says
ought to be hanged by the neek until
dead—but, gentlemen, | undertake to
say that if every man in Idaho, whe
is a8 bad ns Mason is hanged, before
you get through will probably
find it very hard work to get a Jury
) pass on the remainder. | will take
my stand and run my chances along
side of Alvin Mason, in preference to

Alvin

vou

-‘k.v]dnn they buried in the ['--"'-r':-l|l-l|:l‘;\,: -i.l--lll.-ni:;]: "I‘:‘:'jr;‘!‘"l'_-‘-.‘ l“r ::“’
Field, without any investigation, with t‘..lf:;.-;.:’.ipﬂnm Ir... I .:'.- .-l" g -
out any effort to find whether he eame Fighteen or twenty ';;u-- I'I-nlil':.r'
to his death by fair means or foul. ...,T in the |.'..rl-~.-" |.r.l they gol :'

And then you are told, gentlemen, thart gether Wt other '; o8 nd ' tt jl-
you twelve men up here have nothing formed, what Philli q“.-|' ,‘.: '.-‘.-“' T-I:y
to do except to perform a job, which per K,ilf. rs’' Ass E .“'ﬂ' I\..-- wil-n
ihv_\' eould mot get a .lur_\' to perform|is n doubt n-lun|' Iu’ --.' -'-“I Fr ."';
at home, All right, gentlemen. Go is what they did l Ii't thi .\1- !ll'tp
ahead and do it, if you think you|(reek ::'..'-n.-r l. ;-I.. not ‘»'--l;'-”-
._lllﬂl;f. go ahead, but 1 want to say| s m If .” .\ ever .,,. . I- t '.r-r.- !-?K
if an Idaho Jury eould take this man,|] « ; i o thet B

under the eireumstances of this case
even if they knew he guilty
would take him out and hang him,
they would place a blot upon the fair
flanw of this State, which it could not
live down until the last
die,

was

man should

Death of Bouley

Let us take one more fact in this
case. I want to discuss the ques-
tion of whether Steve Adams is guilty
of this erime or not. Let us take
one more fact and see who is really
responsible in the case. I don’t know
whether Fred Tyler is dead or not.
Those may have been Tyler’s bones
that were found in the Marble Creek
distriet and they may not have been.

Perhaps you gentlemen ‘can tell, 1
can’t, but I do know Ed. Bouley was
killed, that is ecertain. Iinul--‘\.' wnas
ll!llt on the trail, and his horse was
killed and his dog was killed, Now,
that is true, gentlemen. I do know,

also, that what the State elaims about
this is true, that he was killed beecause
he was a ‘‘jumper’'’; some fifty or
seventy—five shots were fired at him,
five or ten taking effect in Bouley:
he was killed away up there in the
wilderness, where Alvin Mason and
Newt. Glover and the rest had gone to
hew out homes for themselves anl
their little ones. And if Tyler is
dead—I will go a step further and suy
that the evidence is fairly plain to
me, that the same influences and prob.
ably the same people killed Tyler who
killed Bouley. Bouley was killed and

notices were tacked up on the trees
that this would be the fate of all
““Jjumpers’’, and he wus left in the

trail, and nobody held an inquest or

cared anything about him.
Gentlemen, who killed Bouley? Let
us be fair about this; who killed him?

Was it Steve Adams? Why, Warden
Whitney, in his blundering, clumsy,
impossible way—he is about as del
icate as an elephant—told vou that
Adams said that he had the shell from
which the bullet ecame that killed
Tyler. But let it go. Nobody pays
any attention to what Whitney says
anyway. Of course, there were fifty
or sevety-five shots fired at Bouley,
80 nobody knows who did kill him
Who did it, gentlemen? Now, let
be fair about this for a minute. You
will be fair about it, I know. 1 never
yet saw twelve men that did not have
the common instinet of justice and
humanity down deep in them, and
you have got them, whether this is an
obscure town or not. Mr. Knight said
I would try to say something to hang
the Jury. I dont want to hang any-
body; he is the one that secks to
hang somebody; 1 am not looking for

us

any hanging, either of the Defendant
or of the Jury. If there is any one
man in this panel who would convier
Steve Adams in this case, if he knew
he was guilty, then, gentlemen, I have
missed my guess, that is all, and I
dont ‘‘size you up’’ right. If a fraud
like this couldl be consummated in any
Jury box in the United States, I have
rtol. something to learn. 1 dont believe

Trial of Civilization
Now, who killed Bouley? Let us see
sbout him. Fifty

shots were fired.
‘“confession’’

or seventy-five
If you take Adams’
there were at least four
men there, but if you were to take
Phillips’ evidence alone ,there were
fifty or seventy-five shots fired. Let us
remember something further than that
Eighteen or twenty men were gath-
ered together out in the woods, out in
the dense forest taking counsel among
themselves. as to how they would de-
fend their homes aguinst the jumpers,
met there just a few days before

cighteen or twenty of those sturdy
homesteaders, who have laid the foun
dation of the civiization of Ilaho—
not only of Tdahe, gentlemen, but of

every Btate in the Union; the same
kind of men who years ago landed
upon the bleak shores of New Eng

land and who slowly fought their way
aceross the continent, fought with the
Indiang fought with the' ' jumpers’’,
until they reached the State of Idaho

and there is not a graveyard that
has marked the whole course of this
eivilization that has not been filled

with ‘‘ jumpera'’, not one,
civilize a great

You eannot

nation by reading

two years and a half | hymn books alone, and it has not been

back bevond

Boone these men

lone that way. Awnay
the time of Daniel
with their trusty rifles lefended their
fireside and their homes agninst the
invaders, who would go over ther
to take them away. And T de say that
it was the gladdest news that ever
erossed the hills and the mountains
and the forests of the Marble Creek
distriet when it was announeed that

I should be glad to. 1 know that no

nen are all good or all bad., As Mr.
Knight's friend Nietzsche s ive, there
is a good deal of the wolf and the
wild beast about us. Ani when I
heard him pleading so hard for you

to hang Steve Adams, I felt dead sure
that it was true. Men are not all
good and they are not all bad; and
these men, who could leave the steam-
heated flats of the cities and go away
up here in the wilderness of Idabo,

with their wives and echillren, and
undergo the privations of men who
settle up a new eountry, would be
very apt to carry a gun along with

them to help settle it. And there has

not been a single part of Ameriea
that has been settled in any’ other
way; and they are good fellows too,

mighty good fellows,

Bloody Lord Angus

Here is what I am complaining of,
gentlemen, in this case—and 1 want
to know what you think about it—
Bouley was killed by the whole set-
tlement; however many men were ro-
sponsible for the speecific net, they
were all glad of it, and they all par-
ticipated in it, and they all brought
about the sentiment that killed him.
Is there any doubt about that?
When the news spread out over the
prairies, 1 take it that pretty nearly
every man there was glal of it; and
I take it that Mr. High Sheriff, Suth-
erland—who would “‘lick his echops
with ghoulish glee’’ if he could get at
Steve Adams’ blood—Mr. High Sheriff

Sutherland was as glad as anvbody
e¢lse, because he did not try to find
out who had committed the deed.
Oh, no, not Angus. He did not send
his Deputy Hicks, his Deputy Wil
linms or anybody else out to endeavor
to find out who killed Boulev. Bat
here is an idea, gentlemen, I want to
put to you twelve men. Adams did
not live in the Marble Creek country;
he was up there visiting Jack .‘-"-‘|-‘p-
kins; wvery likely he attended this

neeting; very likely Bouley was killed
by all the settlers up there, and when
George H. Root g upon the stand
and hedged, and quibbled and dodged,

it was pretty plain why-—because he
was in it, just the same as all the
rest of the settlers. They were all in
it, and they wamted to get rid of

Bouley, because day after day he was
leading some new men down for the
Barbour Lumber Company, to settle
on some other man’s home; today it
might be mine, tomorrow it might be
Newt, Glover’s; the next day it
might be Root's; the next day it might
be your's. Nobody knew when their
turn would come, and, of course, those
men were glad of his death. That
whole community was responsible for
the death of Tyler—if Tyler is dead—
and you twelve men are asked to pass
them all by, are you not?! You are
asked to leave Fred Engstrom, who
Bouley said was the man who was
after him—you are asked to leave
every settler in the Marble Creek
Distriet, you are asked to leave every
man out and at large, untouched and?
unharmed, every man in this section
of Tdaho, and visit the consequeces of
this erime of the killing of Bouley on
Steve Adams.

Now, do you think that is fairy’
All right; if you do, go ahead; you.
have got the power; nobody else ean,
hang a man legally in this country ex
cepting a Jury. If you want to have

it written down, for yourselves in
after vears to refleet upon, and vour
children and your children’s children
to point to im the future, that you
permitted the State of Lilaho to leave
every man at large, responsible for
Tyler’s death,, unprosecuted- and un
pursued, and you visited vour ven
geance upon this poor miner, all right,

You eannot find a man on the face of

the earth elsewhere who would do it
Better Made ldaho a Wilderress
Our friend Koight talks about ‘‘a
hung Jury '’ I never saw one mem
ber of this Jury before Do you sup-
pose & man who has anv knowledge of
the way men feel or think would have
any doubt about how n st man
would think or feel in a case like this
or what a business man wounld think
or feel, or what any unpr Heed man
would think or feel? o lemen, if
the farmers or the pe f lLdaho,
knowing that a large numbor of its
citizens were interested | this kil
ling, knowing that thev all pr | by
it, knowing that whenever a settlor
went home and went hed n rh
It safer b use Bouley was dend
knowing that he felt his property 1.
secure when this man was kill i
n Jury, knowing this, Ll v
in their hearts and in tl Cons nees
to pass all these men by inil single
mt this one vietim, less intersted tha
the rest, Yhen, gentlemes I would
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Darrow’s Plea to the Jury for the Life of Adams

Your Homor, Gentlemen of the Jury:

I hive been somewhat jinterested
and possibly amused at what I sup-
pose was the argument that has

eded me in this case. Mr., Knight

told you how young and inexper-
fenced he is. I think his argument
shows it; still we all learn some things
in the books before we begin practie-
ing law. Amonget those we learn that
a proseeutor should tell in a plain,
straightforward way, what he “thinks
are the reasons—what he thinks is the
evidence—that finds the defendant
guilty.

A defendant pleading for a man’s
life may be excused for some things;
he often goes further®than he ought.
I do, many Rimes, Many times I
regret it. But if you are pleading
for a man’s life you ean be exeused;
but if you are trying to take it away,
that is another thing,

A prosecutor should be judicial; he
should be fair. The defendant has
no chance to talk, his lips are sealed.
You may eall him a dastardly cowarl
and a eriminal, he ean say nothing
about it. He is there to wait to find
out whether twelve men are to tie a
rope around his neck, and that is all
there is about it. And it is the ducy
of a prosecutor, if 1 understand it,
not to beg for a verdiet, as Mr, Knight
has so pitiously begged, before this
jury. hy, one woud almost believe
that Mr. Kunight would mnever have
another case in the world unless he
got Steve Adams hanged; he talks
as if he would not. 1 never heard
anybody beg for a verdict the way he
begged in this ease. Now, if it would
help Knight's law practice, Steve has
stood a good deal, and I suppase he
could stand this. We have not heard
any analysis of the evidence; we have
not heard any discussion of the facus,
We have heard the words ‘‘dastard’’
and “‘eriminal’’, and we have heard
talk of the ‘‘greatest’’ and ‘‘worst’’
and ‘‘blackest’’ eriminal act ever per-
formed in the history of the world

If you had eut ‘‘dastard’’ out of
Mr. Knight’s speech I dont believe ho
would have made one.

Mistreatment of Adams

I don't think that is the way
& defendant should be treated. This
defendant had been treated badly
enough, God knows, before he got
into this ecourt; and, as 1 say,
and as the lawr says, and as
your own sense and justice would

say, a man in defending may be for-
given much; he may be intemperate
in his language; he may go beyond
- what he ought. But in the prosecu-
tiom it is another thing.

It is just as much murder to tie a
rope around the neck of a man, under
the guise of law, if he has not ben

roven guilty, as it is to shoot him in
he head; and a man who would eare-
lessly and lightly do it has just as
much to answer for,

You have every proof, we are told
by Mr. Knight, that Adams is the
worst man on the face of the earth.
You would think Steve Adams did
not need any lawyer at all, he did
not need ue to defend him; he counlld
have come into this court with detee-
tive McParland and the counsel for
the State and his rights would have
been well preserved.

Gentlemen, 1 eannot agree with Mr,
Knight, I think if ever a man needed
a lawyer SBteve Adams has needed one,
and 1 am not here to dodge any re
sponsibilities in this case or to deny
any of the faects in this case or to
deny who is defending him. There
is a powerful organization on both
si and Steve Adams is mighty
lueky that he has got somebody to

y the expenses of his trial or else
E: would be ground to pieces by the
power of the state,

A Great Knight

I cannot attempt to follow all that
Mr. Knight has said. He has quoted
from some suthorities that are un-
familiar to me; he has quoted from
the Bible dnd Shakespeare. 1 have
heard of these. He said something
about Nietzsche; I suppose Nietzsche
is some man that lives up at Wallace
whom I never met before, so I will
have to Nietzsche. He sems to be
familiar with him. I have not eriti-
cized Mr. Knight's grammar or his
English. If I were to give my opin-
jon, T would say that has been about
all there was to his argument, the

mar and the English. Mr, Knight

as told you that we are up here in a
rural town amongst farmers; and I
suppose the inference would be that
grammar and English would not be
specially needed up hers, in what HNe
cnemterlm as an obscure town,

Now, so far as I am concerned, I
want to argue this case upon the facts
us they are before this jury plainly
in as stfuightforwalrd a ‘way as 1
ean. | want to take the facts of this
ease, and I want the jury to remember,
as 1 know they will, that a man’s
life is at stake in this trial,

Mr. Knight has informed you that
this is more than a mere murder ease.
Now, I don’t know exaetly what that
means; I don’t know exactly what he
means by ‘‘a mere murdor case’’. TIf
there is anything on earth that is
higher or more important than a mere
murder case T don’t know what it is,
I never have found it, T never under
stand it.

Here is a ease where you twelve men
are charged with the responsibility of
saying whether one of your fellow
citizens shall live or die, If you ean
get any greater rosponsibility, gentle-
men, Idont know what it is. 1 would
not take it. T would not take the re-
sponsibility that you twelve men have,
‘Ilhnra is nothing any more important
than ‘‘a mere murder ease'’,

The Real Issue
But, Mr, Knight says, yon are not
trying a mere murder ecase, you are
trying republican institutions, to wsee
whether tge Republie is safe,

Well, now, T have got an idea that

the Republic will jog along if this | County, he made an affidavit that the
jury in this ‘‘obscuretown’’ should go|people of his county were so preju-
It has survived | diced that the State could not get a
some time over a good many mistakes | fair trial at home, and he turned the
| job over to you.

wrong in this case.

of juries and a good many mistakes of
Judges, and I think it would jlc? along
anyhow. It might hurt Mr,
law business but not hurt the Repub
lie.

I eant understand how a Republican

form of government is on trial, as Mr. | cute an
is , abount
Mr. Knight says | the man who loves law, in those days,

Knight has said,
on trinl for his life.
the case is broader than simply a Ques-

Btove Adams

tion of whether Adams killed Tyler. | Probably taking a fee from somebody | Hawley, Spccial Prosecutors, and An-
There's some truth in that, and it is, |else, Where was Mr, Hanson? Where|gus Sutherlund, the Sheriff of Sho-
Mr. Knight says we claim that it isin | was the State’s attorney? Where was|shone County,—all of these men of
some way econnected with what might | Mr. Gyde?t Where was everybody?!power and influence - and position,
be ecalled reform movements, In a An_\:hml‘v after I‘lelh-l\."lq slayers? Any- with the State Tr asury of Idaho at
way that is true. Not that the ques | body trying to track the men who | their command, had this statement or
tion of whether Steve Adams killed | killed Tyler? Anybody interested in'‘‘confession’” about the death of |
Tyler is”in anyway connected with it; the law Anybody interested in this' Tyler in Felruary, 1906, and they di-ll
not that. But we eclaim that from |poor old woman—who has been not even send a word to his bereaved
beginning to the end the prosecution decked up and dressed ap and fixed ! mother. She never heard about it

of . Steve Adams is a humbug and a
fraud; that there is not a particle of
honesty, a particle of econscience or
n particle of justice in the prosecution,
from beginning to the end. We are

not trying Steve Adams for murder;

he is placed on trial for his life before
an ldaho jury bgeause he dared go
back on MeParland., That is what he
is on trinl for, not for murder.

The State through its o..cinls has
been playing with this man's life;
they have been playing with it as
a cat would play with a mouse.

and his feelings and his family as
pawns upon the board to play a game.
And I will show it to you so vou all
know it.

Dares State to Hang Adams

If Steve Adams was tried in this
court, or if any one was tried, for
the murder of Fred Tyler, well and
good; there would be nothing to it,
excepting what Mr. Knight charaeter-
ized as a mere murder case. But that
is not the issue in this case, as Mr.
Knight has well said, and Steve
Adams is mnot tried for that.

Every species of beggary, every
species of artifice, every species of in-
genuity, every sort of stage-setting
and elap-trap has been paraded before
this jury to get it to render a verdict
against Bteve Adams. What for? Do
you think they want to hang him? 1
say to you, gentlemen, find him guilty
if you will, the State of Idaho does not
dare hang Steve Adams,

Do you mean to tell me that Gover-
nor Gooding, Senator Borah, Mr. Haw-
ley and MeParland would dare take
a poor ignorant man like Steve Adams
and beguile him and coax him and
threaten him and use him, and then
tie a rope around his neek? Oh no.
I am not worried about Steve Adams’
life. There is not a man in the bunch
that would think of deing it, or would
ever dare do it. If the o..cials of
this state, charged with the prosecu-
tion of eases would dare take a man’s
life whom they had petted, feasted,
associated with, eared for and used and
got his evidence, and then hang him,
they would put a blot and a stain upon
the Btate of Idaho which could never
be washed away. No! No! No! 1
am not afraid of that, and that is not
the game.

Now, let us take a few of the facts
of this ease, and let us see to what
extent the State has gone. Not to
hang him; that is not the game. No.
They believed if they could keep this
man under their thumb that MeParland
could use him to hang Haywood. And
they eould not. And they now think
if this {ury should put a noose arounl
his neck, that they may use him still
to hang Pettibone or Moyer, That is
a beautiful job, that is turned over
to & Kootenai County jury by the of-
ficers of Bhoshone county and the
prosecutors of the Btate, and that it
all there is to this ecase. Now let me
see whether I am right.

€Crocodile Tears

Mr, Knight has been shedding some
tears over Mrs. Thomas the mother
ot Fred Tyler. Now I don’t want to be
misunderstood in this matter, There
is not any man who does not feel sorry
for Mrs. Thomas—the most pathetic
figure in this trial to any man—and
:0 nl_: have theﬂllal;uliuulnet; do:n

n we 'eel sorry for her
a:?if .'uimd’ in this case, on either
side could do anything to bring back
her son everybody knows they would
do it. BShe is a mother, like other
mothers and has a mother’s feeling
and a mother’s grief,

But when, gentlemen of the jury,
did the State develop their strong in-
terest in Mrs. Thomas? When did
they commence to shed their tears
over this mother's sorrow? Every
tear they shed is a erocodile tear,
and they care no more for Mrs
Thomas than they do for Steve Adams.
Let us see whether they do or not.

I have been censured by Mr. Knight
beeause T said that when the death
of Bouley was heralded through the
woods amongst the homesteaders it
wns weleome news. Bo it was, Now
I am not here to split hairs as to
whether the homesteaders did right
or wrong in welcoming this news.

I have not got any homestead up
there; T have not suffered because
some man permitted himself to bhe used
by a great lumber corporation to
drive out the homesteaders, Until 1
have, I am not in a position to judge
of it, but the faects are plain in this
case that there was not a man in the
whole Marble Creek Jdistriet that did
not rejoiee when Bouley was dead.
They rejoleed just as they would if
a mad dog had been killed, and vou
know it, and they know it.

No Interest Shown
But let us see, Mr, Angus SBuather-
landy who, was Sheriff of Shoshone

County when Rouley was killed—a
man who has heen hot on the trail
of poor Btéve Adams, and who has

moved heaven and earth to eonviet
him, when he failed over in Shoshone

night's |

They |
have considered his body and his soul

| hones,

He was there when
Bouley was killed and was Sheriff,
charged with enforcing the law; he
was sheriff very soon after Tyler dis
appeared; ho was sheriff when this
skeleton was dug up. Did he prose-
inquiry? Did he do anything
it? Where was Mr, Knight,

when these murders were committed?

up, so that you people will hang n!.\'llhml_v even deigned to write her a
discov- | letter, until

man. When some bones wer
ered in August 1905, and they were|
believed to be Tyler's bones, did any. |
|l"r|‘\' send word to his mother? Ind |
they even buy her a erepe veil?

they care? I wonder, gentlemen,
whether anybody ever saw a case with
such elap-trappery and j humbuggery

us this sinee the world began?! Did
they try to learn who the mother was,
or the sister, or send them even a let-
ter?

We won't stop there. That was in
1905, in July or August—and I am
not speaking of the motker now—but
the officers of the state took those
without preservirg one single
partiele of evidence; they threw away
the shoes; they threw away the fin-
ger; they preserved nothing, and they
bundled them up, with some more old
clothes and dumped them in  the
ground, in a e¢offee box. And now
they talk about how they love this
mother; talk about it so vou jurors
will kill Steve Adams. That is why
they talk about it,

Let us go a step further. Nobody
paid any attention to this find up in
the woods. Bouley was dead, and
they were glad of it. They did not
hold an inquest over him—not even
an inquest. The Sheriff did not ecare,
the Coroner did mnot ecare. Nobody
ecared. Some bones were found that
were supposed to be Tyler's, and they
were glad about it, and they did not
hold an inquest over those bones, and
they did not preserve a single serap
of evidence they had, and they buried
him in the ground and he was for-
gotten. Where were the officers of the
law, gentlemen? What were these law-
vers and this sheriff, who shed these
tears over Mrs. Tyler, doing then?
You know what they were doing.
They were glad of it. Remember, some
of them held homesteads themselves;
they were glad to get rid of the man
Bouley, who was up there leading in
man after man to take the fruits of
the labor and the privation and the
toil of the homesteaders, who had gone
out in the wilderness to make homes
for themselves and their families,
You know that, and everybody econ-
neeted with this case knows it.

Activity Begun
But let us go a step further than

that. A big man was killed, a man
who had once been Governor of the
State. Now, I have a belief that one

man's life is worth just as muech as
another, Steve Adams’ life is worth
just as much to him as anybody else’s
life is worth to them, and his de-
serves the same protection as every
other man’s life, and the same effort
should have been made to find the mur-
derer of Gov. SBteunenberg, Fred Tyler
and Bouley as to find the murderer.
But, notice the difference, gentlemen.
When Governor Steunenberg was killed
then Heaven and earth and hell - :re
ransacked—not to find the murderer,
oh mno, not that, but to econviet the
officers and important members of the
Western Federation of Miners. When
Tyler and Bouley were killed, one of
them was buried beside the trail with
his dog and his horse, and the other
in the Potter’s Field, and no sheriff
and mo coroner ever held an inquest

on the remains, or sought to arrest
any body, and no lawyer laid down his
book long enough to bri a prose-
cution against any human being.

Now that is the difference in this
land of ‘‘equality’’. Mr., Kn says
:t :a the greatest on earth.

t s

But that is not all. After Gover
nor Steunenberg was killed, the of-
ficers arrestedd & man, and them th
sent out for Steve Adams, Nw.ql
will discuss Bteve™ ““confession’’
Mittle later. 1 just want to get an
other faet before this jury. And see
whether T tell you anything that is
not true in this whole ecase,

Turned Over to Father Confessor

They brought Steve Adams to
Boise, to the ‘penitentiary, although
he had never been econvieted of any-
thing, and there they turned him into
the cell with Harry Orchard, and
turned him over to the tender mercios

of this wonderful man—who Mr.
Knight says ds practiealy a Saint,
and who has been an enemy or n

traitor to crime, this great preacher
of modern days, Detective James
M Parland, they turned Adams over to
him, Now, T will discuss MeParland
when I get to him.

But they got the econfession from
Steve Adams, and they got that con
fossion on the 2Tth day of February,
1008, and that confession said that
Steve Adams murdered Tyler, and
that he murdeéred Bouley, and the con-
fession further said that Mason and
Glover helped him kill Tyler; that
(lover and Bimpkins and a settler up
helped him kill Bouley. They got that
confession on the 27th day of Febru-
ary, it was put into the hands of
the Governor, into the hands of the
lawyers for the prosecution and into
the hands of the Bheriff of Shoshone

Did |

County. Then what did they do? Did

the mother of the murdered mant
they go and hunt up poor Mrs. Thomas,
Did they go to dry her tears and settle
her doubts? Did they write her a let
ter? Did they eare a continental
whether Tyler ever had a mother, or
a father, or a sister, or a brother, or
who he wius!? Now, you know, gentle-
men, whether I am telling this straight

or not. The Governor of the State of
Idaho, the Great Deteetive of the
Pinkerton Ageney, James MePurland
—forty venrs a sleuth—a Senator of |

the United States (Mr. Borah), Mr. |

they wanted to hold Steve
Adams in their elutehes, and then
they sent her word in September to
eome down Wallace and testify.

More than that, gentlemen, Let us

to

see what there is in this ecase. That
Hoonfession'' said that Mason and
Glover were guilty of murder; that
Heonfession said that another man,

who was and is running at
settler up here in the woods was
guilty of murder. Did they send out
to apprehenl those murderers? They
got this information in February,
1906, Did  any of these numerous
Sleuths or lawyers or officers make any
investigation or attempt to catch the
other man? Did they care one con-
tinenth] who killed Fred Tyler, or
who killed Ed. Bouley? Or was every
single act a fraud, and were they
working simply to conviet somebody
else?! You know the truth; every-
body knows it. In February, 1906,
they were told who had committed
these murders, and not a man raised
his hand or his voiee until SBeptember
1806, when Steve Adams applied for
a writ of Habeas Corpus to get out
of the penitentiary., Then, they got
busy, didn't they? Got busy for what?
To find the slayer of Tyler, to find
the slayer of Bouley? Oh, no, not that
at all. We are told there is nothing
against Alvin Mason, although Mr,

night, for the prosecution, informed
us at the last trial of this case in Wal-
lace, that he would prosecute Alvin
Mason as soon as he was done with
this case, He is a little slow about it.
They did not get busy to avenge the
death of Bouley; they did not get
busy to avenge the death of Tyler;
they diu wot get busy to finl out whe
was guilty of the murder of these men,
but they got busy to try to hang
Steve Adams.

Now, gentlemen, is there any doubt
about this?

Late Mournings

Go a step further. We have been
given ecertain reasons for believing
that Tyler was dead, and that it was,
his skeleton that was found in the|
Marble Creek Country. I dont know |
whether it was his skeleton or not;|
there are reasons for and there are
reasons against believing it. Did the]
mother believe it was her son’s skel-
eton? She ought to know as much|
about it as any one., She is the one
who pared his feet, who said the soles)
were thiek; she is the one who said
he hurt his finger playing base ball.
Did she believe it was his skeleton?
Yet, this skeleton was found in July
or August, 1805, and her husband and
two of her sons—in—law were there,
and they went with it to the Head
of Navigation, and they returned and
told her about it. Now, I am not
going to find fault because she did
not go to Wallace, but, gentlemen,
I cannot help thinking that it is a
little strange that a mother, who did
not even take the pains to plant one
flower over her boy’s grave, or make
one visit to her son’s gave or buy one
erepe vell to mourn his death, should
come here to this courtroom so heavily
laden with mourning, three years after

it is E.-d and gone, and when »a
asked to

large, o

Jury Il Steve Adams.
Do you think there is anything stran
about it? Is this real grief that

paraded here, or it is the trappings
of the theater, that are brought into
this Court of Justice in order to get
you to do a job which they ecannot
get done over in Shoshone County,
where the thing bappened?

Now, that is not all. This woman,
this mother, might have still hoped
and when that body was discovered
that it was not her son's. But she was
written to in September, 1006, and todl
that Adams had ‘‘confessed’’, and she
came down to the hearing in Sept-
Saptamber, 1906, and between Feb-
rusky and Segtember pf that year
not & word had been said to her by
any of these men—who so loved the
law and who so love justice! Not a
word! Bhe had been left alone. She
was written to in September to come
down to Wallace and testify—not to
wee her son’s remains, not to come
down to assist in giving him a decent
burial, but to come down and help eon-
viet Steve Adams, that was what she
wns written for: and she eame and
heard the ‘‘confession’’, and she tes
tified and went back home; but she
did not even buy a crepe veil in Wal
lnce. She had not then begun to be
so certain about her son's death that
she would wear mourning.

Adams' Life a Pawn

But the trial eame up in February,

1006, and she came to Wallace in her
regular elothes;
after her son was dead she eame to
Whallaee, and while she was still there |

at the trial, attending the trial she |
bought erepe and mourning for the
courtroom and has got it on now,

Now, gentlemen, do you think that is
““fixed up’’'?! Let me say this: The

prosecution are soo anxious to get a
rope around Steve Adams' neck that
they have been willing to play with

him, they have been willing to use his
life a8 a pawn; they have been willing
to drive him, hither and vonder, over
the length and breadth of the land:
they have been willing to play with
him, as a eat would play with a mouse;
tl:w_v have been willing to trifle with
his feelings and affection; they have
been willing to trifle with his -fa:uil_\'.
his wife and his children, and they
have been willing to take a mother’s
love and a mother’s tears and a
mother's sorrow and a mother’s
mourning and work those up into the
coin of the realm, that they might
tie & rope mround Steve Adams’ neck.
They are using this mother, they are
using these feelings, they are .uning
these sentiments to get a verdiet, and
they care as muoch about her as they

did for Fred Tyler's remains, or the

Bouley was killed; and you gentlemem
know it.

Defending Their Homes

These sturdy settlers up there in
the Marble Creek district may be bad
men. Poor oll Mason, the
father of eight children, who came up
here into the Idaho wilderness, whose
sole possession wns a wife and seven
children, and who Mr. Knight says
ought to be hanged by the neek until
dead—but, gentlemen, | undertake to
say that if every man in Idaho, whe
is a8 bad ns Mason is hanged, before
you get through will probably
find it very hard work to get a Jury
) pass on the remainder. | will take
my stand and run my chances along
side of Alvin Mason, in preference to

Alvin

vou

-‘k.v]dnn they buried in the ['--"'-r':-l|l-l|:l‘;\,: -i.l--lll.-ni:;]: "I‘:‘:'jr;‘!‘"l'_-‘-.‘ l“r ::“’
Field, without any investigation, with t‘..lf:;.-;.:’.ipﬂnm Ir... I .:'.- .-l" g -
out any effort to find whether he eame Fighteen or twenty ';;u-- I'I-nlil':.r'
to his death by fair means or foul. ...,T in the |.'..rl-~.-" |.r.l they gol :'

And then you are told, gentlemen, thart gether Wt other '; o8 nd ' tt jl-
you twelve men up here have nothing formed, what Philli q“.-|' ,‘.: '.-‘.-“' T-I:y
to do except to perform a job, which per K,ilf. rs’' Ass E .“'ﬂ' I\..-- wil-n
ihv_\' eould mot get a .lur_\' to perform|is n doubt n-lun|' Iu’ --.' -'-“I Fr ."';
at home, All right, gentlemen. Go is what they did l Ii't thi .\1- !ll'tp
ahead and do it, if you think you|(reek ::'..'-n.-r l. ;-I.. not ‘»'--l;'-”-
._lllﬂl;f. go ahead, but 1 want to say| s m If .” .\ ever .,,. . I- t '.r-r.- !-?K
if an Idaho Jury eould take this man,|] « ; i o thet B

under the eireumstances of this case
even if they knew he guilty
would take him out and hang him,
they would place a blot upon the fair
flanw of this State, which it could not
live down until the last
die,

was

man should

Death of Bouley

Let us take one more fact in this
case. I want to discuss the ques-
tion of whether Steve Adams is guilty
of this erime or not. Let us take
one more fact and see who is really
responsible in the case. I don’t know
whether Fred Tyler is dead or not.
Those may have been Tyler’s bones
that were found in the Marble Creek
distriet and they may not have been.

Perhaps you gentlemen ‘can tell, 1
can’t, but I do know Ed. Bouley was
killed, that is ecertain. Iinul--‘\.' wnas
ll!llt on the trail, and his horse was
killed and his dog was killed, Now,
that is true, gentlemen. I do know,

also, that what the State elaims about
this is true, that he was killed beecause
he was a ‘‘jumper’'’; some fifty or
seventy—five shots were fired at him,
five or ten taking effect in Bouley:
he was killed away up there in the
wilderness, where Alvin Mason and
Newt. Glover and the rest had gone to
hew out homes for themselves anl
their little ones. And if Tyler is
dead—I will go a step further and suy
that the evidence is fairly plain to
me, that the same influences and prob.
ably the same people killed Tyler who
killed Bouley. Bouley was killed and

notices were tacked up on the trees
that this would be the fate of all
““Jjumpers’’, and he wus left in the

trail, and nobody held an inquest or

cared anything about him.
Gentlemen, who killed Bouley? Let
us be fair about this; who killed him?

Was it Steve Adams? Why, Warden
Whitney, in his blundering, clumsy,
impossible way—he is about as del
icate as an elephant—told vou that
Adams said that he had the shell from
which the bullet ecame that killed
Tyler. But let it go. Nobody pays
any attention to what Whitney says
anyway. Of course, there were fifty
or sevety-five shots fired at Bouley,
80 nobody knows who did kill him
Who did it, gentlemen? Now, let
be fair about this for a minute. You
will be fair about it, I know. 1 never
yet saw twelve men that did not have
the common instinet of justice and
humanity down deep in them, and
you have got them, whether this is an
obscure town or not. Mr. Knight said
I would try to say something to hang
the Jury. I dont want to hang any-
body; he is the one that secks to
hang somebody; 1 am not looking for

us

any hanging, either of the Defendant
or of the Jury. If there is any one
man in this panel who would convier
Steve Adams in this case, if he knew
he was guilty, then, gentlemen, I have
missed my guess, that is all, and I
dont ‘‘size you up’’ right. If a fraud
like this couldl be consummated in any
Jury box in the United States, I have
rtol. something to learn. 1 dont believe

Trial of Civilization
Now, who killed Bouley? Let us see
sbout him. Fifty

shots were fired.
‘“confession’’

or seventy-five
If you take Adams’
there were at least four
men there, but if you were to take
Phillips’ evidence alone ,there were
fifty or seventy-five shots fired. Let us
remember something further than that
Eighteen or twenty men were gath-
ered together out in the woods, out in
the dense forest taking counsel among
themselves. as to how they would de-
fend their homes aguinst the jumpers,
met there just a few days before

cighteen or twenty of those sturdy
homesteaders, who have laid the foun
dation of the civiization of Ilaho—
not only of Tdahe, gentlemen, but of

every Btate in the Union; the same
kind of men who years ago landed
upon the bleak shores of New Eng

land and who slowly fought their way
aceross the continent, fought with the
Indiang fought with the' ' jumpers’’,
until they reached the State of Idaho

and there is not a graveyard that
has marked the whole course of this
eivilization that has not been filled

with ‘‘ jumpera'’, not one,
civilize a great

You eannot

nation by reading

two years and a half | hymn books alone, and it has not been

back bevond

Boone these men

lone that way. Awnay
the time of Daniel
with their trusty rifles lefended their
fireside and their homes agninst the
invaders, who would go over ther
to take them away. And T de say that
it was the gladdest news that ever
erossed the hills and the mountains
and the forests of the Marble Creek
distriet when it was announeed that

I should be glad to. 1 know that no

nen are all good or all bad., As Mr.
Knight's friend Nietzsche s ive, there
is a good deal of the wolf and the
wild beast about us. Ani when I
heard him pleading so hard for you

to hang Steve Adams, I felt dead sure
that it was true. Men are not all
good and they are not all bad; and
these men, who could leave the steam-
heated flats of the cities and go away
up here in the wilderness of Idabo,

with their wives and echillren, and
undergo the privations of men who
settle up a new eountry, would be
very apt to carry a gun along with

them to help settle it. And there has

not been a single part of Ameriea
that has been settled in any’ other
way; and they are good fellows too,

mighty good fellows,

Bloody Lord Angus

Here is what I am complaining of,
gentlemen, in this case—and 1 want
to know what you think about it—
Bouley was killed by the whole set-
tlement; however many men were ro-
sponsible for the speecific net, they
were all glad of it, and they all par-
ticipated in it, and they all brought
about the sentiment that killed him.
Is there any doubt about that?
When the news spread out over the
prairies, 1 take it that pretty nearly
every man there was glal of it; and
I take it that Mr. High Sheriff, Suth-
erland—who would “‘lick his echops
with ghoulish glee’’ if he could get at
Steve Adams’ blood—Mr. High Sheriff

Sutherland was as glad as anvbody
e¢lse, because he did not try to find
out who had committed the deed.
Oh, no, not Angus. He did not send
his Deputy Hicks, his Deputy Wil
linms or anybody else out to endeavor
to find out who killed Boulev. Bat
here is an idea, gentlemen, I want to
put to you twelve men. Adams did
not live in the Marble Creek country;
he was up there visiting Jack .‘-"-‘|-‘p-
kins; wvery likely he attended this

neeting; very likely Bouley was killed
by all the settlers up there, and when
George H. Root g upon the stand
and hedged, and quibbled and dodged,

it was pretty plain why-—because he
was in it, just the same as all the
rest of the settlers. They were all in
it, and they wamted to get rid of

Bouley, because day after day he was
leading some new men down for the
Barbour Lumber Company, to settle
on some other man’s home; today it
might be mine, tomorrow it might be
Newt, Glover’s; the next day it
might be Root's; the next day it might
be your's. Nobody knew when their
turn would come, and, of course, those
men were glad of his death. That
whole community was responsible for
the death of Tyler—if Tyler is dead—
and you twelve men are asked to pass
them all by, are you not?! You are
asked to leave Fred Engstrom, who
Bouley said was the man who was
after him—you are asked to leave
every settler in the Marble Creek
Distriet, you are asked to leave every
man out and at large, untouched and?
unharmed, every man in this section
of Tdaho, and visit the consequeces of
this erime of the killing of Bouley on
Steve Adams.

Now, do you think that is fairy’
All right; if you do, go ahead; you.
have got the power; nobody else ean,
hang a man legally in this country ex
cepting a Jury. If you want to have

it written down, for yourselves in
after vears to refleet upon, and vour
children and your children’s children
to point to im the future, that you
permitted the State of Lilaho to leave
every man at large, responsible for
Tyler’s death,, unprosecuted- and un
pursued, and you visited vour ven
geance upon this poor miner, all right,

You eannot find a man on the face of

the earth elsewhere who would do it
Better Made ldaho a Wilderress
Our friend Koight talks about ‘‘a
hung Jury '’ I never saw one mem
ber of this Jury before Do you sup-
pose & man who has anv knowledge of
the way men feel or think would have
any doubt about how n st man
would think or feel in a case like this
or what a business man wounld think
or feel, or what any unpr Heed man
would think or feel? o lemen, if
the farmers or the pe f lLdaho,
knowing that a large numbor of its
citizens were interested | this kil
ling, knowing that thev all pr | by
it, knowing that whenever a settlor
went home and went hed n rh
It safer b use Bouley was dend
knowing that he felt his property 1.
secure when this man was kill i
n Jury, knowing this, Ll v
in their hearts and in tl Cons nees
to pass all these men by inil single
mt this one vietim, less intersted tha
the rest, Yhen, gentlemes I would
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Darrow’s Plea to the Jury for the Life of Adams

Your Homor, Gentlemen of the Jury:

I hive been somewhat jinterested
and possibly amused at what I sup-
pose was the argument that has

eded me in this case. Mr., Knight

told you how young and inexper-
fenced he is. I think his argument
shows it; still we all learn some things
in the books before we begin practie-
ing law. Amonget those we learn that
a proseeutor should tell in a plain,
straightforward way, what he “thinks
are the reasons—what he thinks is the
evidence—that finds the defendant
guilty.

A defendant pleading for a man’s
life may be excused for some things;
he often goes further®than he ought.
I do, many Rimes, Many times I
regret it. But if you are pleading
for a man’s life you ean be exeused;
but if you are trying to take it away,
that is another thing,

A prosecutor should be judicial; he
should be fair. The defendant has
no chance to talk, his lips are sealed.
You may eall him a dastardly cowarl
and a eriminal, he ean say nothing
about it. He is there to wait to find
out whether twelve men are to tie a
rope around his neck, and that is all
there is about it. And it is the ducy
of a prosecutor, if 1 understand it,
not to beg for a verdiet, as Mr, Knight
has so pitiously begged, before this
jury. hy, one woud almost believe
that Mr. Kunight would mnever have
another case in the world unless he
got Steve Adams hanged; he talks
as if he would not. 1 never heard
anybody beg for a verdict the way he
begged in this ease. Now, if it would
help Knight's law practice, Steve has
stood a good deal, and I suppase he
could stand this. We have not heard
any analysis of the evidence; we have
not heard any discussion of the facus,
We have heard the words ‘‘dastard’’
and “‘eriminal’’, and we have heard
talk of the ‘‘greatest’’ and ‘‘worst’’
and ‘‘blackest’’ eriminal act ever per-
formed in the history of the world

If you had eut ‘‘dastard’’ out of
Mr. Knight’s speech I dont believe ho
would have made one.

Mistreatment of Adams

I don't think that is the way
& defendant should be treated. This
defendant had been treated badly
enough, God knows, before he got
into this ecourt; and, as 1 say,
and as the lawr says, and as
your own sense and justice would

say, a man in defending may be for-
given much; he may be intemperate
in his language; he may go beyond
- what he ought. But in the prosecu-
tiom it is another thing.

It is just as much murder to tie a
rope around the neck of a man, under
the guise of law, if he has not ben

roven guilty, as it is to shoot him in
he head; and a man who would eare-
lessly and lightly do it has just as
much to answer for,

You have every proof, we are told
by Mr. Knight, that Adams is the
worst man on the face of the earth.
You would think Steve Adams did
not need any lawyer at all, he did
not need ue to defend him; he counlld
have come into this court with detee-
tive McParland and the counsel for
the State and his rights would have
been well preserved.

Gentlemen, 1 eannot agree with Mr,
Knight, I think if ever a man needed
a lawyer SBteve Adams has needed one,
and 1 am not here to dodge any re
sponsibilities in this case or to deny
any of the faects in this case or to
deny who is defending him. There
is a powerful organization on both
si and Steve Adams is mighty
lueky that he has got somebody to

y the expenses of his trial or else
E: would be ground to pieces by the
power of the state,

A Great Knight

I cannot attempt to follow all that
Mr. Knight has said. He has quoted
from some suthorities that are un-
familiar to me; he has quoted from
the Bible dnd Shakespeare. 1 have
heard of these. He said something
about Nietzsche; I suppose Nietzsche
is some man that lives up at Wallace
whom I never met before, so I will
have to Nietzsche. He sems to be
familiar with him. I have not eriti-
cized Mr. Knight's grammar or his
English. If I were to give my opin-
jon, T would say that has been about
all there was to his argument, the

mar and the English. Mr, Knight

as told you that we are up here in a
rural town amongst farmers; and I
suppose the inference would be that
grammar and English would not be
specially needed up hers, in what HNe
cnemterlm as an obscure town,

Now, so far as I am concerned, I
want to argue this case upon the facts
us they are before this jury plainly
in as stfuightforwalrd a ‘way as 1
ean. | want to take the facts of this
ease, and I want the jury to remember,
as 1 know they will, that a man’s
life is at stake in this trial,

Mr. Knight has informed you that
this is more than a mere murder ease.
Now, I don’t know exaetly what that
means; I don’t know exactly what he
means by ‘‘a mere murdor case’’. TIf
there is anything on earth that is
higher or more important than a mere
murder case T don’t know what it is,
I never have found it, T never under
stand it.

Here is a ease where you twelve men
are charged with the responsibility of
saying whether one of your fellow
citizens shall live or die, If you ean
get any greater rosponsibility, gentle-
men, Idont know what it is. 1 would
not take it. T would not take the re-
sponsibility that you twelve men have,
‘Ilhnra is nothing any more important
than ‘‘a mere murder ease'’,

The Real Issue
But, Mr, Knight says, yon are not
trying a mere murder ecase, you are
trying republican institutions, to wsee
whether tge Republie is safe,

Well, now, T have got an idea that

the Republic will jog along if this | County, he made an affidavit that the
jury in this ‘‘obscuretown’’ should go|people of his county were so preju-
It has survived | diced that the State could not get a
some time over a good many mistakes | fair trial at home, and he turned the
| job over to you.

wrong in this case.

of juries and a good many mistakes of
Judges, and I think it would jlc? along
anyhow. It might hurt Mr,
law business but not hurt the Repub
lie.

I eant understand how a Republican

form of government is on trial, as Mr. | cute an
is , abount
Mr. Knight says | the man who loves law, in those days,

Knight has said,
on trinl for his life.
the case is broader than simply a Ques-

Btove Adams

tion of whether Adams killed Tyler. | Probably taking a fee from somebody | Hawley, Spccial Prosecutors, and An-
There's some truth in that, and it is, |else, Where was Mr, Hanson? Where|gus Sutherlund, the Sheriff of Sho-
Mr. Knight says we claim that it isin | was the State’s attorney? Where was|shone County,—all of these men of
some way econnected with what might | Mr. Gyde?t Where was everybody?!power and influence - and position,
be ecalled reform movements, In a An_\:hml‘v after I‘lelh-l\."lq slayers? Any- with the State Tr asury of Idaho at
way that is true. Not that the ques | body trying to track the men who | their command, had this statement or
tion of whether Steve Adams killed | killed Tyler? Anybody interested in'‘‘confession’” about the death of |
Tyler is”in anyway connected with it; the law Anybody interested in this' Tyler in Felruary, 1906, and they di-ll
not that. But we eclaim that from |poor old woman—who has been not even send a word to his bereaved
beginning to the end the prosecution decked up and dressed ap and fixed ! mother. She never heard about it

of . Steve Adams is a humbug and a
fraud; that there is not a particle of
honesty, a particle of econscience or
n particle of justice in the prosecution,
from beginning to the end. We are

not trying Steve Adams for murder;

he is placed on trial for his life before
an ldaho jury bgeause he dared go
back on MeParland., That is what he
is on trinl for, not for murder.

The State through its o..cinls has
been playing with this man's life;
they have been playing with it as
a cat would play with a mouse.

and his feelings and his family as
pawns upon the board to play a game.
And I will show it to you so vou all
know it.

Dares State to Hang Adams

If Steve Adams was tried in this
court, or if any one was tried, for
the murder of Fred Tyler, well and
good; there would be nothing to it,
excepting what Mr. Knight charaeter-
ized as a mere murder case. But that
is not the issue in this case, as Mr.
Knight has well said, and Steve
Adams is mnot tried for that.

Every species of beggary, every
species of artifice, every species of in-
genuity, every sort of stage-setting
and elap-trap has been paraded before
this jury to get it to render a verdict
against Bteve Adams. What for? Do
you think they want to hang him? 1
say to you, gentlemen, find him guilty
if you will, the State of Idaho does not
dare hang Steve Adams,

Do you mean to tell me that Gover-
nor Gooding, Senator Borah, Mr. Haw-
ley and MeParland would dare take
a poor ignorant man like Steve Adams
and beguile him and coax him and
threaten him and use him, and then
tie a rope around his neek? Oh no.
I am not worried about Steve Adams’
life. There is not a man in the bunch
that would think of deing it, or would
ever dare do it. If the o..cials of
this state, charged with the prosecu-
tion of eases would dare take a man’s
life whom they had petted, feasted,
associated with, eared for and used and
got his evidence, and then hang him,
they would put a blot and a stain upon
the Btate of Idaho which could never
be washed away. No! No! No! 1
am not afraid of that, and that is not
the game.

Now, let us take a few of the facts
of this ease, and let us see to what
extent the State has gone. Not to
hang him; that is not the game. No.
They believed if they could keep this
man under their thumb that MeParland
could use him to hang Haywood. And
they eould not. And they now think
if this {ury should put a noose arounl
his neck, that they may use him still
to hang Pettibone or Moyer, That is
a beautiful job, that is turned over
to & Kootenai County jury by the of-
ficers of Bhoshone county and the
prosecutors of the Btate, and that it
all there is to this ecase. Now let me
see whether I am right.

€Crocodile Tears

Mr, Knight has been shedding some
tears over Mrs. Thomas the mother
ot Fred Tyler. Now I don’t want to be
misunderstood in this matter, There
is not any man who does not feel sorry
for Mrs. Thomas—the most pathetic
figure in this trial to any man—and
:0 nl_: have theﬂllal;uliuulnet; do:n

n we 'eel sorry for her
a:?if .'uimd’ in this case, on either
side could do anything to bring back
her son everybody knows they would
do it. BShe is a mother, like other
mothers and has a mother’s feeling
and a mother’s grief,

But when, gentlemen of the jury,
did the State develop their strong in-
terest in Mrs. Thomas? When did
they commence to shed their tears
over this mother's sorrow? Every
tear they shed is a erocodile tear,
and they care no more for Mrs
Thomas than they do for Steve Adams.
Let us see whether they do or not.

I have been censured by Mr. Knight
beeause T said that when the death
of Bouley was heralded through the
woods amongst the homesteaders it
wns weleome news. Bo it was, Now
I am not here to split hairs as to
whether the homesteaders did right
or wrong in welcoming this news.

I have not got any homestead up
there; T have not suffered because
some man permitted himself to bhe used
by a great lumber corporation to
drive out the homesteaders, Until 1
have, I am not in a position to judge
of it, but the faects are plain in this
case that there was not a man in the
whole Marble Creek Jdistriet that did
not rejoiee when Bouley was dead.
They rejoleed just as they would if
a mad dog had been killed, and vou
know it, and they know it.

No Interest Shown
But let us see, Mr, Angus SBuather-
landy who, was Sheriff of Shoshone

County when Rouley was killed—a
man who has heen hot on the trail
of poor Btéve Adams, and who has

moved heaven and earth to eonviet
him, when he failed over in Shoshone

night's |

They |
have considered his body and his soul

| hones,

He was there when
Bouley was killed and was Sheriff,
charged with enforcing the law; he
was sheriff very soon after Tyler dis
appeared; ho was sheriff when this
skeleton was dug up. Did he prose-
inquiry? Did he do anything
it? Where was Mr, Knight,

when these murders were committed?

up, so that you people will hang n!.\'llhml_v even deigned to write her a
discov- | letter, until

man. When some bones wer
ered in August 1905, and they were|
believed to be Tyler's bones, did any. |
|l"r|‘\' send word to his mother? Ind |
they even buy her a erepe veil?

they care? I wonder, gentlemen,
whether anybody ever saw a case with
such elap-trappery and j humbuggery

us this sinee the world began?! Did
they try to learn who the mother was,
or the sister, or send them even a let-
ter?

We won't stop there. That was in
1905, in July or August—and I am
not speaking of the motker now—but
the officers of the state took those
without preservirg one single
partiele of evidence; they threw away
the shoes; they threw away the fin-
ger; they preserved nothing, and they
bundled them up, with some more old
clothes and dumped them in  the
ground, in a e¢offee box. And now
they talk about how they love this
mother; talk about it so vou jurors
will kill Steve Adams. That is why
they talk about it,

Let us go a step further. Nobody
paid any attention to this find up in
the woods. Bouley was dead, and
they were glad of it. They did not
hold an inquest over him—not even
an inquest. The Sheriff did not ecare,
the Coroner did mnot ecare. Nobody
ecared. Some bones were found that
were supposed to be Tyler's, and they
were glad about it, and they did not
hold an inquest over those bones, and
they did not preserve a single serap
of evidence they had, and they buried
him in the ground and he was for-
gotten. Where were the officers of the
law, gentlemen? What were these law-
vers and this sheriff, who shed these
tears over Mrs. Tyler, doing then?
You know what they were doing.
They were glad of it. Remember, some
of them held homesteads themselves;
they were glad to get rid of the man
Bouley, who was up there leading in
man after man to take the fruits of
the labor and the privation and the
toil of the homesteaders, who had gone
out in the wilderness to make homes
for themselves and their families,
You know that, and everybody econ-
neeted with this case knows it.

Activity Begun
But let us go a step further than

that. A big man was killed, a man
who had once been Governor of the
State. Now, I have a belief that one

man's life is worth just as muech as
another, Steve Adams’ life is worth
just as much to him as anybody else’s
life is worth to them, and his de-
serves the same protection as every
other man’s life, and the same effort
should have been made to find the mur-
derer of Gov. SBteunenberg, Fred Tyler
and Bouley as to find the murderer.
But, notice the difference, gentlemen.
When Governor Steunenberg was killed
then Heaven and earth and hell - :re
ransacked—not to find the murderer,
oh mno, not that, but to econviet the
officers and important members of the
Western Federation of Miners. When
Tyler and Bouley were killed, one of
them was buried beside the trail with
his dog and his horse, and the other
in the Potter’s Field, and no sheriff
and mo coroner ever held an inquest

on the remains, or sought to arrest
any body, and no lawyer laid down his
book long enough to bri a prose-
cution against any human being.

Now that is the difference in this
land of ‘‘equality’’. Mr., Kn says
:t :a the greatest on earth.

t s

But that is not all. After Gover
nor Steunenberg was killed, the of-
ficers arrestedd & man, and them th
sent out for Steve Adams, Nw.ql
will discuss Bteve™ ““confession’’
Mittle later. 1 just want to get an
other faet before this jury. And see
whether T tell you anything that is
not true in this whole ecase,

Turned Over to Father Confessor

They brought Steve Adams to
Boise, to the ‘penitentiary, although
he had never been econvieted of any-
thing, and there they turned him into
the cell with Harry Orchard, and
turned him over to the tender mercios

of this wonderful man—who Mr.
Knight says ds practiealy a Saint,
and who has been an enemy or n

traitor to crime, this great preacher
of modern days, Detective James
M Parland, they turned Adams over to
him, Now, T will discuss MeParland
when I get to him.

But they got the econfession from
Steve Adams, and they got that con
fossion on the 2Tth day of February,
1008, and that confession said that
Steve Adams murdered Tyler, and
that he murdeéred Bouley, and the con-
fession further said that Mason and
Glover helped him kill Tyler; that
(lover and Bimpkins and a settler up
helped him kill Bouley. They got that
confession on the 27th day of Febru-
ary, it was put into the hands of
the Governor, into the hands of the
lawyers for the prosecution and into
the hands of the Bheriff of Shoshone

Did |

County. Then what did they do? Did

the mother of the murdered mant
they go and hunt up poor Mrs. Thomas,
Did they go to dry her tears and settle
her doubts? Did they write her a let
ter? Did they eare a continental
whether Tyler ever had a mother, or
a father, or a sister, or a brother, or
who he wius!? Now, you know, gentle-
men, whether I am telling this straight

or not. The Governor of the State of
Idaho, the Great Deteetive of the
Pinkerton Ageney, James MePurland
—forty venrs a sleuth—a Senator of |

the United States (Mr. Borah), Mr. |

they wanted to hold Steve
Adams in their elutehes, and then
they sent her word in September to
eome down Wallace and testify.

More than that, gentlemen, Let us

to

see what there is in this ecase. That
Hoonfession'' said that Mason and
Glover were guilty of murder; that
Heonfession said that another man,

who was and is running at
settler up here in the woods was
guilty of murder. Did they send out
to apprehenl those murderers? They
got this information in February,
1906, Did  any of these numerous
Sleuths or lawyers or officers make any
investigation or attempt to catch the
other man? Did they care one con-
tinenth] who killed Fred Tyler, or
who killed Ed. Bouley? Or was every
single act a fraud, and were they
working simply to conviet somebody
else?! You know the truth; every-
body knows it. In February, 1906,
they were told who had committed
these murders, and not a man raised
his hand or his voiee until SBeptember
1806, when Steve Adams applied for
a writ of Habeas Corpus to get out
of the penitentiary., Then, they got
busy, didn't they? Got busy for what?
To find the slayer of Tyler, to find
the slayer of Bouley? Oh, no, not that
at all. We are told there is nothing
against Alvin Mason, although Mr,

night, for the prosecution, informed
us at the last trial of this case in Wal-
lace, that he would prosecute Alvin
Mason as soon as he was done with
this case, He is a little slow about it.
They did not get busy to avenge the
death of Bouley; they did not get
busy to avenge the death of Tyler;
they diu wot get busy to finl out whe
was guilty of the murder of these men,
but they got busy to try to hang
Steve Adams.

Now, gentlemen, is there any doubt
about this?

Late Mournings

Go a step further. We have been
given ecertain reasons for believing
that Tyler was dead, and that it was,
his skeleton that was found in the|
Marble Creek Country. I dont know |
whether it was his skeleton or not;|
there are reasons for and there are
reasons against believing it. Did the]
mother believe it was her son’s skel-
eton? She ought to know as much|
about it as any one., She is the one
who pared his feet, who said the soles)
were thiek; she is the one who said
he hurt his finger playing base ball.
Did she believe it was his skeleton?
Yet, this skeleton was found in July
or August, 1805, and her husband and
two of her sons—in—law were there,
and they went with it to the Head
of Navigation, and they returned and
told her about it. Now, I am not
going to find fault because she did
not go to Wallace, but, gentlemen,
I cannot help thinking that it is a
little strange that a mother, who did
not even take the pains to plant one
flower over her boy’s grave, or make
one visit to her son’s gave or buy one
erepe vell to mourn his death, should
come here to this courtroom so heavily
laden with mourning, three years after

it is E.-d and gone, and when »a
asked to

large, o

Jury Il Steve Adams.
Do you think there is anything stran
about it? Is this real grief that

paraded here, or it is the trappings
of the theater, that are brought into
this Court of Justice in order to get
you to do a job which they ecannot
get done over in Shoshone County,
where the thing bappened?

Now, that is not all. This woman,
this mother, might have still hoped
and when that body was discovered
that it was not her son's. But she was
written to in September, 1006, and todl
that Adams had ‘‘confessed’’, and she
came down to the hearing in Sept-
Saptamber, 1906, and between Feb-
rusky and Segtember pf that year
not & word had been said to her by
any of these men—who so loved the
law and who so love justice! Not a
word! Bhe had been left alone. She
was written to in September to come
down to Wallace and testify—not to
wee her son’s remains, not to come
down to assist in giving him a decent
burial, but to come down and help eon-
viet Steve Adams, that was what she
wns written for: and she eame and
heard the ‘‘confession’’, and she tes
tified and went back home; but she
did not even buy a crepe veil in Wal
lnce. She had not then begun to be
so certain about her son's death that
she would wear mourning.

Adams' Life a Pawn

But the trial eame up in February,

1006, and she came to Wallace in her
regular elothes;
after her son was dead she eame to
Whallaee, and while she was still there |

at the trial, attending the trial she |
bought erepe and mourning for the
courtroom and has got it on now,

Now, gentlemen, do you think that is
““fixed up’’'?! Let me say this: The

prosecution are soo anxious to get a
rope around Steve Adams' neck that
they have been willing to play with

him, they have been willing to use his
life a8 a pawn; they have been willing
to drive him, hither and vonder, over
the length and breadth of the land:
they have been willing to play with
him, as a eat would play with a mouse;
tl:w_v have been willing to trifle with
his feelings and affection; they have
been willing to trifle with his -fa:uil_\'.
his wife and his children, and they
have been willing to take a mother’s
love and a mother’s tears and a
mother's sorrow and a mother’s
mourning and work those up into the
coin of the realm, that they might
tie & rope mround Steve Adams’ neck.
They are using this mother, they are
using these feelings, they are .uning
these sentiments to get a verdiet, and
they care as muoch about her as they

did for Fred Tyler's remains, or the

Bouley was killed; and you gentlemem
know it.

Defending Their Homes

These sturdy settlers up there in
the Marble Creek district may be bad
men. Poor oll Mason, the
father of eight children, who came up
here into the Idaho wilderness, whose
sole possession wns a wife and seven
children, and who Mr. Knight says
ought to be hanged by the neek until
dead—but, gentlemen, | undertake to
say that if every man in Idaho, whe
is a8 bad ns Mason is hanged, before
you get through will probably
find it very hard work to get a Jury
) pass on the remainder. | will take
my stand and run my chances along
side of Alvin Mason, in preference to

Alvin

vou

-‘k.v]dnn they buried in the ['--"'-r':-l|l-l|:l‘;\,: -i.l--lll.-ni:;]: "I‘:‘:'jr;‘!‘"l'_-‘-.‘ l“r ::“’
Field, without any investigation, with t‘..lf:;.-;.:’.ipﬂnm Ir... I .:'.- .-l" g -
out any effort to find whether he eame Fighteen or twenty ';;u-- I'I-nlil':.r'
to his death by fair means or foul. ...,T in the |.'..rl-~.-" |.r.l they gol :'

And then you are told, gentlemen, thart gether Wt other '; o8 nd ' tt jl-
you twelve men up here have nothing formed, what Philli q“.-|' ,‘.: '.-‘.-“' T-I:y
to do except to perform a job, which per K,ilf. rs’' Ass E .“'ﬂ' I\..-- wil-n
ihv_\' eould mot get a .lur_\' to perform|is n doubt n-lun|' Iu’ --.' -'-“I Fr ."';
at home, All right, gentlemen. Go is what they did l Ii't thi .\1- !ll'tp
ahead and do it, if you think you|(reek ::'..'-n.-r l. ;-I.. not ‘»'--l;'-”-
._lllﬂl;f. go ahead, but 1 want to say| s m If .” .\ ever .,,. . I- t '.r-r.- !-?K
if an Idaho Jury eould take this man,|] « ; i o thet B

under the eireumstances of this case
even if they knew he guilty
would take him out and hang him,
they would place a blot upon the fair
flanw of this State, which it could not
live down until the last
die,

was

man should

Death of Bouley

Let us take one more fact in this
case. I want to discuss the ques-
tion of whether Steve Adams is guilty
of this erime or not. Let us take
one more fact and see who is really
responsible in the case. I don’t know
whether Fred Tyler is dead or not.
Those may have been Tyler’s bones
that were found in the Marble Creek
distriet and they may not have been.

Perhaps you gentlemen ‘can tell, 1
can’t, but I do know Ed. Bouley was
killed, that is ecertain. Iinul--‘\.' wnas
ll!llt on the trail, and his horse was
killed and his dog was killed, Now,
that is true, gentlemen. I do know,

also, that what the State elaims about
this is true, that he was killed beecause
he was a ‘‘jumper’'’; some fifty or
seventy—five shots were fired at him,
five or ten taking effect in Bouley:
he was killed away up there in the
wilderness, where Alvin Mason and
Newt. Glover and the rest had gone to
hew out homes for themselves anl
their little ones. And if Tyler is
dead—I will go a step further and suy
that the evidence is fairly plain to
me, that the same influences and prob.
ably the same people killed Tyler who
killed Bouley. Bouley was killed and

notices were tacked up on the trees
that this would be the fate of all
““Jjumpers’’, and he wus left in the

trail, and nobody held an inquest or

cared anything about him.
Gentlemen, who killed Bouley? Let
us be fair about this; who killed him?

Was it Steve Adams? Why, Warden
Whitney, in his blundering, clumsy,
impossible way—he is about as del
icate as an elephant—told vou that
Adams said that he had the shell from
which the bullet ecame that killed
Tyler. But let it go. Nobody pays
any attention to what Whitney says
anyway. Of course, there were fifty
or sevety-five shots fired at Bouley,
80 nobody knows who did kill him
Who did it, gentlemen? Now, let
be fair about this for a minute. You
will be fair about it, I know. 1 never
yet saw twelve men that did not have
the common instinet of justice and
humanity down deep in them, and
you have got them, whether this is an
obscure town or not. Mr. Knight said
I would try to say something to hang
the Jury. I dont want to hang any-
body; he is the one that secks to
hang somebody; 1 am not looking for

us

any hanging, either of the Defendant
or of the Jury. If there is any one
man in this panel who would convier
Steve Adams in this case, if he knew
he was guilty, then, gentlemen, I have
missed my guess, that is all, and I
dont ‘‘size you up’’ right. If a fraud
like this couldl be consummated in any
Jury box in the United States, I have
rtol. something to learn. 1 dont believe

Trial of Civilization
Now, who killed Bouley? Let us see
sbout him. Fifty

shots were fired.
‘“confession’’

or seventy-five
If you take Adams’
there were at least four
men there, but if you were to take
Phillips’ evidence alone ,there were
fifty or seventy-five shots fired. Let us
remember something further than that
Eighteen or twenty men were gath-
ered together out in the woods, out in
the dense forest taking counsel among
themselves. as to how they would de-
fend their homes aguinst the jumpers,
met there just a few days before

cighteen or twenty of those sturdy
homesteaders, who have laid the foun
dation of the civiization of Ilaho—
not only of Tdahe, gentlemen, but of

every Btate in the Union; the same
kind of men who years ago landed
upon the bleak shores of New Eng

land and who slowly fought their way
aceross the continent, fought with the
Indiang fought with the' ' jumpers’’,
until they reached the State of Idaho

and there is not a graveyard that
has marked the whole course of this
eivilization that has not been filled

with ‘‘ jumpera'’, not one,
civilize a great

You eannot

nation by reading

two years and a half | hymn books alone, and it has not been

back bevond

Boone these men

lone that way. Awnay
the time of Daniel
with their trusty rifles lefended their
fireside and their homes agninst the
invaders, who would go over ther
to take them away. And T de say that
it was the gladdest news that ever
erossed the hills and the mountains
and the forests of the Marble Creek
distriet when it was announeed that

I should be glad to. 1 know that no

nen are all good or all bad., As Mr.
Knight's friend Nietzsche s ive, there
is a good deal of the wolf and the
wild beast about us. Ani when I
heard him pleading so hard for you

to hang Steve Adams, I felt dead sure
that it was true. Men are not all
good and they are not all bad; and
these men, who could leave the steam-
heated flats of the cities and go away
up here in the wilderness of Idabo,

with their wives and echillren, and
undergo the privations of men who
settle up a new eountry, would be
very apt to carry a gun along with

them to help settle it. And there has

not been a single part of Ameriea
that has been settled in any’ other
way; and they are good fellows too,

mighty good fellows,

Bloody Lord Angus

Here is what I am complaining of,
gentlemen, in this case—and 1 want
to know what you think about it—
Bouley was killed by the whole set-
tlement; however many men were ro-
sponsible for the speecific net, they
were all glad of it, and they all par-
ticipated in it, and they all brought
about the sentiment that killed him.
Is there any doubt about that?
When the news spread out over the
prairies, 1 take it that pretty nearly
every man there was glal of it; and
I take it that Mr. High Sheriff, Suth-
erland—who would “‘lick his echops
with ghoulish glee’’ if he could get at
Steve Adams’ blood—Mr. High Sheriff

Sutherland was as glad as anvbody
e¢lse, because he did not try to find
out who had committed the deed.
Oh, no, not Angus. He did not send
his Deputy Hicks, his Deputy Wil
linms or anybody else out to endeavor
to find out who killed Boulev. Bat
here is an idea, gentlemen, I want to
put to you twelve men. Adams did
not live in the Marble Creek country;
he was up there visiting Jack .‘-"-‘|-‘p-
kins; wvery likely he attended this

neeting; very likely Bouley was killed
by all the settlers up there, and when
George H. Root g upon the stand
and hedged, and quibbled and dodged,

it was pretty plain why-—because he
was in it, just the same as all the
rest of the settlers. They were all in
it, and they wamted to get rid of

Bouley, because day after day he was
leading some new men down for the
Barbour Lumber Company, to settle
on some other man’s home; today it
might be mine, tomorrow it might be
Newt, Glover’s; the next day it
might be Root's; the next day it might
be your's. Nobody knew when their
turn would come, and, of course, those
men were glad of his death. That
whole community was responsible for
the death of Tyler—if Tyler is dead—
and you twelve men are asked to pass
them all by, are you not?! You are
asked to leave Fred Engstrom, who
Bouley said was the man who was
after him—you are asked to leave
every settler in the Marble Creek
Distriet, you are asked to leave every
man out and at large, untouched and?
unharmed, every man in this section
of Tdaho, and visit the consequeces of
this erime of the killing of Bouley on
Steve Adams.

Now, do you think that is fairy’
All right; if you do, go ahead; you.
have got the power; nobody else ean,
hang a man legally in this country ex
cepting a Jury. If you want to have

it written down, for yourselves in
after vears to refleet upon, and vour
children and your children’s children
to point to im the future, that you
permitted the State of Lilaho to leave
every man at large, responsible for
Tyler’s death,, unprosecuted- and un
pursued, and you visited vour ven
geance upon this poor miner, all right,

You eannot find a man on the face of

the earth elsewhere who would do it
Better Made ldaho a Wilderress
Our friend Koight talks about ‘‘a
hung Jury '’ I never saw one mem
ber of this Jury before Do you sup-
pose & man who has anv knowledge of
the way men feel or think would have
any doubt about how n st man
would think or feel in a case like this
or what a business man wounld think
or feel, or what any unpr Heed man
would think or feel? o lemen, if
the farmers or the pe f lLdaho,
knowing that a large numbor of its
citizens were interested | this kil
ling, knowing that thev all pr | by
it, knowing that whenever a settlor
went home and went hed n rh
It safer b use Bouley was dend
knowing that he felt his property 1.
secure when this man was kill i
n Jury, knowing this, Ll v
in their hearts and in tl Cons nees
to pass all these men by inil single
mt this one vietim, less intersted tha
the rest, Yhen, gentlemes I would
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Darrow’s Plea to the Jury for the Life of Adams

Your Homor, Gentlemen of the Jury:

I hive been somewhat jinterested
and possibly amused at what I sup-
pose was the argument that has

eded me in this case. Mr., Knight

told you how young and inexper-
fenced he is. I think his argument
shows it; still we all learn some things
in the books before we begin practie-
ing law. Amonget those we learn that
a proseeutor should tell in a plain,
straightforward way, what he “thinks
are the reasons—what he thinks is the
evidence—that finds the defendant
guilty.

A defendant pleading for a man’s
life may be excused for some things;
he often goes further®than he ought.
I do, many Rimes, Many times I
regret it. But if you are pleading
for a man’s life you ean be exeused;
but if you are trying to take it away,
that is another thing,

A prosecutor should be judicial; he
should be fair. The defendant has
no chance to talk, his lips are sealed.
You may eall him a dastardly cowarl
and a eriminal, he ean say nothing
about it. He is there to wait to find
out whether twelve men are to tie a
rope around his neck, and that is all
there is about it. And it is the ducy
of a prosecutor, if 1 understand it,
not to beg for a verdiet, as Mr, Knight
has so pitiously begged, before this
jury. hy, one woud almost believe
that Mr. Kunight would mnever have
another case in the world unless he
got Steve Adams hanged; he talks
as if he would not. 1 never heard
anybody beg for a verdict the way he
begged in this ease. Now, if it would
help Knight's law practice, Steve has
stood a good deal, and I suppase he
could stand this. We have not heard
any analysis of the evidence; we have
not heard any discussion of the facus,
We have heard the words ‘‘dastard’’
and “‘eriminal’’, and we have heard
talk of the ‘‘greatest’’ and ‘‘worst’’
and ‘‘blackest’’ eriminal act ever per-
formed in the history of the world

If you had eut ‘‘dastard’’ out of
Mr. Knight’s speech I dont believe ho
would have made one.

Mistreatment of Adams

I don't think that is the way
& defendant should be treated. This
defendant had been treated badly
enough, God knows, before he got
into this ecourt; and, as 1 say,
and as the lawr says, and as
your own sense and justice would

say, a man in defending may be for-
given much; he may be intemperate
in his language; he may go beyond
- what he ought. But in the prosecu-
tiom it is another thing.

It is just as much murder to tie a
rope around the neck of a man, under
the guise of law, if he has not ben

roven guilty, as it is to shoot him in
he head; and a man who would eare-
lessly and lightly do it has just as
much to answer for,

You have every proof, we are told
by Mr. Knight, that Adams is the
worst man on the face of the earth.
You would think Steve Adams did
not need any lawyer at all, he did
not need ue to defend him; he counlld
have come into this court with detee-
tive McParland and the counsel for
the State and his rights would have
been well preserved.

Gentlemen, 1 eannot agree with Mr,
Knight, I think if ever a man needed
a lawyer SBteve Adams has needed one,
and 1 am not here to dodge any re
sponsibilities in this case or to deny
any of the faects in this case or to
deny who is defending him. There
is a powerful organization on both
si and Steve Adams is mighty
lueky that he has got somebody to

y the expenses of his trial or else
E: would be ground to pieces by the
power of the state,

A Great Knight

I cannot attempt to follow all that
Mr. Knight has said. He has quoted
from some suthorities that are un-
familiar to me; he has quoted from
the Bible dnd Shakespeare. 1 have
heard of these. He said something
about Nietzsche; I suppose Nietzsche
is some man that lives up at Wallace
whom I never met before, so I will
have to Nietzsche. He sems to be
familiar with him. I have not eriti-
cized Mr. Knight's grammar or his
English. If I were to give my opin-
jon, T would say that has been about
all there was to his argument, the

mar and the English. Mr, Knight

as told you that we are up here in a
rural town amongst farmers; and I
suppose the inference would be that
grammar and English would not be
specially needed up hers, in what HNe
cnemterlm as an obscure town,

Now, so far as I am concerned, I
want to argue this case upon the facts
us they are before this jury plainly
in as stfuightforwalrd a ‘way as 1
ean. | want to take the facts of this
ease, and I want the jury to remember,
as 1 know they will, that a man’s
life is at stake in this trial,

Mr. Knight has informed you that
this is more than a mere murder ease.
Now, I don’t know exaetly what that
means; I don’t know exactly what he
means by ‘‘a mere murdor case’’. TIf
there is anything on earth that is
higher or more important than a mere
murder case T don’t know what it is,
I never have found it, T never under
stand it.

Here is a ease where you twelve men
are charged with the responsibility of
saying whether one of your fellow
citizens shall live or die, If you ean
get any greater rosponsibility, gentle-
men, Idont know what it is. 1 would
not take it. T would not take the re-
sponsibility that you twelve men have,
‘Ilhnra is nothing any more important
than ‘‘a mere murder ease'’,

The Real Issue
But, Mr, Knight says, yon are not
trying a mere murder ecase, you are
trying republican institutions, to wsee
whether tge Republie is safe,

Well, now, T have got an idea that

the Republic will jog along if this | County, he made an affidavit that the
jury in this ‘‘obscuretown’’ should go|people of his county were so preju-
It has survived | diced that the State could not get a
some time over a good many mistakes | fair trial at home, and he turned the
| job over to you.

wrong in this case.

of juries and a good many mistakes of
Judges, and I think it would jlc? along
anyhow. It might hurt Mr,
law business but not hurt the Repub
lie.

I eant understand how a Republican

form of government is on trial, as Mr. | cute an
is , abount
Mr. Knight says | the man who loves law, in those days,

Knight has said,
on trinl for his life.
the case is broader than simply a Ques-

Btove Adams

tion of whether Adams killed Tyler. | Probably taking a fee from somebody | Hawley, Spccial Prosecutors, and An-
There's some truth in that, and it is, |else, Where was Mr, Hanson? Where|gus Sutherlund, the Sheriff of Sho-
Mr. Knight says we claim that it isin | was the State’s attorney? Where was|shone County,—all of these men of
some way econnected with what might | Mr. Gyde?t Where was everybody?!power and influence - and position,
be ecalled reform movements, In a An_\:hml‘v after I‘lelh-l\."lq slayers? Any- with the State Tr asury of Idaho at
way that is true. Not that the ques | body trying to track the men who | their command, had this statement or
tion of whether Steve Adams killed | killed Tyler? Anybody interested in'‘‘confession’” about the death of |
Tyler is”in anyway connected with it; the law Anybody interested in this' Tyler in Felruary, 1906, and they di-ll
not that. But we eclaim that from |poor old woman—who has been not even send a word to his bereaved
beginning to the end the prosecution decked up and dressed ap and fixed ! mother. She never heard about it

of . Steve Adams is a humbug and a
fraud; that there is not a particle of
honesty, a particle of econscience or
n particle of justice in the prosecution,
from beginning to the end. We are

not trying Steve Adams for murder;

he is placed on trial for his life before
an ldaho jury bgeause he dared go
back on MeParland., That is what he
is on trinl for, not for murder.

The State through its o..cinls has
been playing with this man's life;
they have been playing with it as
a cat would play with a mouse.

and his feelings and his family as
pawns upon the board to play a game.
And I will show it to you so vou all
know it.

Dares State to Hang Adams

If Steve Adams was tried in this
court, or if any one was tried, for
the murder of Fred Tyler, well and
good; there would be nothing to it,
excepting what Mr. Knight charaeter-
ized as a mere murder case. But that
is not the issue in this case, as Mr.
Knight has well said, and Steve
Adams is mnot tried for that.

Every species of beggary, every
species of artifice, every species of in-
genuity, every sort of stage-setting
and elap-trap has been paraded before
this jury to get it to render a verdict
against Bteve Adams. What for? Do
you think they want to hang him? 1
say to you, gentlemen, find him guilty
if you will, the State of Idaho does not
dare hang Steve Adams,

Do you mean to tell me that Gover-
nor Gooding, Senator Borah, Mr. Haw-
ley and MeParland would dare take
a poor ignorant man like Steve Adams
and beguile him and coax him and
threaten him and use him, and then
tie a rope around his neek? Oh no.
I am not worried about Steve Adams’
life. There is not a man in the bunch
that would think of deing it, or would
ever dare do it. If the o..cials of
this state, charged with the prosecu-
tion of eases would dare take a man’s
life whom they had petted, feasted,
associated with, eared for and used and
got his evidence, and then hang him,
they would put a blot and a stain upon
the Btate of Idaho which could never
be washed away. No! No! No! 1
am not afraid of that, and that is not
the game.

Now, let us take a few of the facts
of this ease, and let us see to what
extent the State has gone. Not to
hang him; that is not the game. No.
They believed if they could keep this
man under their thumb that MeParland
could use him to hang Haywood. And
they eould not. And they now think
if this {ury should put a noose arounl
his neck, that they may use him still
to hang Pettibone or Moyer, That is
a beautiful job, that is turned over
to & Kootenai County jury by the of-
ficers of Bhoshone county and the
prosecutors of the Btate, and that it
all there is to this ecase. Now let me
see whether I am right.

€Crocodile Tears

Mr, Knight has been shedding some
tears over Mrs. Thomas the mother
ot Fred Tyler. Now I don’t want to be
misunderstood in this matter, There
is not any man who does not feel sorry
for Mrs. Thomas—the most pathetic
figure in this trial to any man—and
:0 nl_: have theﬂllal;uliuulnet; do:n

n we 'eel sorry for her
a:?if .'uimd’ in this case, on either
side could do anything to bring back
her son everybody knows they would
do it. BShe is a mother, like other
mothers and has a mother’s feeling
and a mother’s grief,

But when, gentlemen of the jury,
did the State develop their strong in-
terest in Mrs. Thomas? When did
they commence to shed their tears
over this mother's sorrow? Every
tear they shed is a erocodile tear,
and they care no more for Mrs
Thomas than they do for Steve Adams.
Let us see whether they do or not.

I have been censured by Mr. Knight
beeause T said that when the death
of Bouley was heralded through the
woods amongst the homesteaders it
wns weleome news. Bo it was, Now
I am not here to split hairs as to
whether the homesteaders did right
or wrong in welcoming this news.

I have not got any homestead up
there; T have not suffered because
some man permitted himself to bhe used
by a great lumber corporation to
drive out the homesteaders, Until 1
have, I am not in a position to judge
of it, but the faects are plain in this
case that there was not a man in the
whole Marble Creek Jdistriet that did
not rejoiee when Bouley was dead.
They rejoleed just as they would if
a mad dog had been killed, and vou
know it, and they know it.

No Interest Shown
But let us see, Mr, Angus SBuather-
landy who, was Sheriff of Shoshone

County when Rouley was killed—a
man who has heen hot on the trail
of poor Btéve Adams, and who has

moved heaven and earth to eonviet
him, when he failed over in Shoshone

night's |

They |
have considered his body and his soul

| hones,

He was there when
Bouley was killed and was Sheriff,
charged with enforcing the law; he
was sheriff very soon after Tyler dis
appeared; ho was sheriff when this
skeleton was dug up. Did he prose-
inquiry? Did he do anything
it? Where was Mr, Knight,

when these murders were committed?

up, so that you people will hang n!.\'llhml_v even deigned to write her a
discov- | letter, until

man. When some bones wer
ered in August 1905, and they were|
believed to be Tyler's bones, did any. |
|l"r|‘\' send word to his mother? Ind |
they even buy her a erepe veil?

they care? I wonder, gentlemen,
whether anybody ever saw a case with
such elap-trappery and j humbuggery

us this sinee the world began?! Did
they try to learn who the mother was,
or the sister, or send them even a let-
ter?

We won't stop there. That was in
1905, in July or August—and I am
not speaking of the motker now—but
the officers of the state took those
without preservirg one single
partiele of evidence; they threw away
the shoes; they threw away the fin-
ger; they preserved nothing, and they
bundled them up, with some more old
clothes and dumped them in  the
ground, in a e¢offee box. And now
they talk about how they love this
mother; talk about it so vou jurors
will kill Steve Adams. That is why
they talk about it,

Let us go a step further. Nobody
paid any attention to this find up in
the woods. Bouley was dead, and
they were glad of it. They did not
hold an inquest over him—not even
an inquest. The Sheriff did not ecare,
the Coroner did mnot ecare. Nobody
ecared. Some bones were found that
were supposed to be Tyler's, and they
were glad about it, and they did not
hold an inquest over those bones, and
they did not preserve a single serap
of evidence they had, and they buried
him in the ground and he was for-
gotten. Where were the officers of the
law, gentlemen? What were these law-
vers and this sheriff, who shed these
tears over Mrs. Tyler, doing then?
You know what they were doing.
They were glad of it. Remember, some
of them held homesteads themselves;
they were glad to get rid of the man
Bouley, who was up there leading in
man after man to take the fruits of
the labor and the privation and the
toil of the homesteaders, who had gone
out in the wilderness to make homes
for themselves and their families,
You know that, and everybody econ-
neeted with this case knows it.

Activity Begun
But let us go a step further than

that. A big man was killed, a man
who had once been Governor of the
State. Now, I have a belief that one

man's life is worth just as muech as
another, Steve Adams’ life is worth
just as much to him as anybody else’s
life is worth to them, and his de-
serves the same protection as every
other man’s life, and the same effort
should have been made to find the mur-
derer of Gov. SBteunenberg, Fred Tyler
and Bouley as to find the murderer.
But, notice the difference, gentlemen.
When Governor Steunenberg was killed
then Heaven and earth and hell - :re
ransacked—not to find the murderer,
oh mno, not that, but to econviet the
officers and important members of the
Western Federation of Miners. When
Tyler and Bouley were killed, one of
them was buried beside the trail with
his dog and his horse, and the other
in the Potter’s Field, and no sheriff
and mo coroner ever held an inquest

on the remains, or sought to arrest
any body, and no lawyer laid down his
book long enough to bri a prose-
cution against any human being.

Now that is the difference in this
land of ‘‘equality’’. Mr., Kn says
:t :a the greatest on earth.

t s

But that is not all. After Gover
nor Steunenberg was killed, the of-
ficers arrestedd & man, and them th
sent out for Steve Adams, Nw.ql
will discuss Bteve™ ““confession’’
Mittle later. 1 just want to get an
other faet before this jury. And see
whether T tell you anything that is
not true in this whole ecase,

Turned Over to Father Confessor

They brought Steve Adams to
Boise, to the ‘penitentiary, although
he had never been econvieted of any-
thing, and there they turned him into
the cell with Harry Orchard, and
turned him over to the tender mercios

of this wonderful man—who Mr.
Knight says ds practiealy a Saint,
and who has been an enemy or n

traitor to crime, this great preacher
of modern days, Detective James
M Parland, they turned Adams over to
him, Now, T will discuss MeParland
when I get to him.

But they got the econfession from
Steve Adams, and they got that con
fossion on the 2Tth day of February,
1008, and that confession said that
Steve Adams murdered Tyler, and
that he murdeéred Bouley, and the con-
fession further said that Mason and
Glover helped him kill Tyler; that
(lover and Bimpkins and a settler up
helped him kill Bouley. They got that
confession on the 27th day of Febru-
ary, it was put into the hands of
the Governor, into the hands of the
lawyers for the prosecution and into
the hands of the Bheriff of Shoshone

Did |

County. Then what did they do? Did

the mother of the murdered mant
they go and hunt up poor Mrs. Thomas,
Did they go to dry her tears and settle
her doubts? Did they write her a let
ter? Did they eare a continental
whether Tyler ever had a mother, or
a father, or a sister, or a brother, or
who he wius!? Now, you know, gentle-
men, whether I am telling this straight

or not. The Governor of the State of
Idaho, the Great Deteetive of the
Pinkerton Ageney, James MePurland
—forty venrs a sleuth—a Senator of |

the United States (Mr. Borah), Mr. |

they wanted to hold Steve
Adams in their elutehes, and then
they sent her word in September to
eome down Wallace and testify.

More than that, gentlemen, Let us

to

see what there is in this ecase. That
Hoonfession'' said that Mason and
Glover were guilty of murder; that
Heonfession said that another man,

who was and is running at
settler up here in the woods was
guilty of murder. Did they send out
to apprehenl those murderers? They
got this information in February,
1906, Did  any of these numerous
Sleuths or lawyers or officers make any
investigation or attempt to catch the
other man? Did they care one con-
tinenth] who killed Fred Tyler, or
who killed Ed. Bouley? Or was every
single act a fraud, and were they
working simply to conviet somebody
else?! You know the truth; every-
body knows it. In February, 1906,
they were told who had committed
these murders, and not a man raised
his hand or his voiee until SBeptember
1806, when Steve Adams applied for
a writ of Habeas Corpus to get out
of the penitentiary., Then, they got
busy, didn't they? Got busy for what?
To find the slayer of Tyler, to find
the slayer of Bouley? Oh, no, not that
at all. We are told there is nothing
against Alvin Mason, although Mr,

night, for the prosecution, informed
us at the last trial of this case in Wal-
lace, that he would prosecute Alvin
Mason as soon as he was done with
this case, He is a little slow about it.
They did not get busy to avenge the
death of Bouley; they did not get
busy to avenge the death of Tyler;
they diu wot get busy to finl out whe
was guilty of the murder of these men,
but they got busy to try to hang
Steve Adams.

Now, gentlemen, is there any doubt
about this?

Late Mournings

Go a step further. We have been
given ecertain reasons for believing
that Tyler was dead, and that it was,
his skeleton that was found in the|
Marble Creek Country. I dont know |
whether it was his skeleton or not;|
there are reasons for and there are
reasons against believing it. Did the]
mother believe it was her son’s skel-
eton? She ought to know as much|
about it as any one., She is the one
who pared his feet, who said the soles)
were thiek; she is the one who said
he hurt his finger playing base ball.
Did she believe it was his skeleton?
Yet, this skeleton was found in July
or August, 1805, and her husband and
two of her sons—in—law were there,
and they went with it to the Head
of Navigation, and they returned and
told her about it. Now, I am not
going to find fault because she did
not go to Wallace, but, gentlemen,
I cannot help thinking that it is a
little strange that a mother, who did
not even take the pains to plant one
flower over her boy’s grave, or make
one visit to her son’s gave or buy one
erepe vell to mourn his death, should
come here to this courtroom so heavily
laden with mourning, three years after

it is E.-d and gone, and when »a
asked to

large, o

Jury Il Steve Adams.
Do you think there is anything stran
about it? Is this real grief that

paraded here, or it is the trappings
of the theater, that are brought into
this Court of Justice in order to get
you to do a job which they ecannot
get done over in Shoshone County,
where the thing bappened?

Now, that is not all. This woman,
this mother, might have still hoped
and when that body was discovered
that it was not her son's. But she was
written to in September, 1006, and todl
that Adams had ‘‘confessed’’, and she
came down to the hearing in Sept-
Saptamber, 1906, and between Feb-
rusky and Segtember pf that year
not & word had been said to her by
any of these men—who so loved the
law and who so love justice! Not a
word! Bhe had been left alone. She
was written to in September to come
down to Wallace and testify—not to
wee her son’s remains, not to come
down to assist in giving him a decent
burial, but to come down and help eon-
viet Steve Adams, that was what she
wns written for: and she eame and
heard the ‘‘confession’’, and she tes
tified and went back home; but she
did not even buy a crepe veil in Wal
lnce. She had not then begun to be
so certain about her son's death that
she would wear mourning.

Adams' Life a Pawn

But the trial eame up in February,

1006, and she came to Wallace in her
regular elothes;
after her son was dead she eame to
Whallaee, and while she was still there |

at the trial, attending the trial she |
bought erepe and mourning for the
courtroom and has got it on now,

Now, gentlemen, do you think that is
““fixed up’’'?! Let me say this: The

prosecution are soo anxious to get a
rope around Steve Adams' neck that
they have been willing to play with

him, they have been willing to use his
life a8 a pawn; they have been willing
to drive him, hither and vonder, over
the length and breadth of the land:
they have been willing to play with
him, as a eat would play with a mouse;
tl:w_v have been willing to trifle with
his feelings and affection; they have
been willing to trifle with his -fa:uil_\'.
his wife and his children, and they
have been willing to take a mother’s
love and a mother’s tears and a
mother's sorrow and a mother’s
mourning and work those up into the
coin of the realm, that they might
tie & rope mround Steve Adams’ neck.
They are using this mother, they are
using these feelings, they are .uning
these sentiments to get a verdiet, and
they care as muoch about her as they

did for Fred Tyler's remains, or the

Bouley was killed; and you gentlemem
know it.

Defending Their Homes

These sturdy settlers up there in
the Marble Creek district may be bad
men. Poor oll Mason, the
father of eight children, who came up
here into the Idaho wilderness, whose
sole possession wns a wife and seven
children, and who Mr. Knight says
ought to be hanged by the neek until
dead—but, gentlemen, | undertake to
say that if every man in Idaho, whe
is a8 bad ns Mason is hanged, before
you get through will probably
find it very hard work to get a Jury
) pass on the remainder. | will take
my stand and run my chances along
side of Alvin Mason, in preference to

Alvin

vou

-‘k.v]dnn they buried in the ['--"'-r':-l|l-l|:l‘;\,: -i.l--lll.-ni:;]: "I‘:‘:'jr;‘!‘"l'_-‘-.‘ l“r ::“’
Field, without any investigation, with t‘..lf:;.-;.:’.ipﬂnm Ir... I .:'.- .-l" g -
out any effort to find whether he eame Fighteen or twenty ';;u-- I'I-nlil':.r'
to his death by fair means or foul. ...,T in the |.'..rl-~.-" |.r.l they gol :'

And then you are told, gentlemen, thart gether Wt other '; o8 nd ' tt jl-
you twelve men up here have nothing formed, what Philli q“.-|' ,‘.: '.-‘.-“' T-I:y
to do except to perform a job, which per K,ilf. rs’' Ass E .“'ﬂ' I\..-- wil-n
ihv_\' eould mot get a .lur_\' to perform|is n doubt n-lun|' Iu’ --.' -'-“I Fr ."';
at home, All right, gentlemen. Go is what they did l Ii't thi .\1- !ll'tp
ahead and do it, if you think you|(reek ::'..'-n.-r l. ;-I.. not ‘»'--l;'-”-
._lllﬂl;f. go ahead, but 1 want to say| s m If .” .\ ever .,,. . I- t '.r-r.- !-?K
if an Idaho Jury eould take this man,|] « ; i o thet B

under the eireumstances of this case
even if they knew he guilty
would take him out and hang him,
they would place a blot upon the fair
flanw of this State, which it could not
live down until the last
die,

was

man should

Death of Bouley

Let us take one more fact in this
case. I want to discuss the ques-
tion of whether Steve Adams is guilty
of this erime or not. Let us take
one more fact and see who is really
responsible in the case. I don’t know
whether Fred Tyler is dead or not.
Those may have been Tyler’s bones
that were found in the Marble Creek
distriet and they may not have been.

Perhaps you gentlemen ‘can tell, 1
can’t, but I do know Ed. Bouley was
killed, that is ecertain. Iinul--‘\.' wnas
ll!llt on the trail, and his horse was
killed and his dog was killed, Now,
that is true, gentlemen. I do know,

also, that what the State elaims about
this is true, that he was killed beecause
he was a ‘‘jumper’'’; some fifty or
seventy—five shots were fired at him,
five or ten taking effect in Bouley:
he was killed away up there in the
wilderness, where Alvin Mason and
Newt. Glover and the rest had gone to
hew out homes for themselves anl
their little ones. And if Tyler is
dead—I will go a step further and suy
that the evidence is fairly plain to
me, that the same influences and prob.
ably the same people killed Tyler who
killed Bouley. Bouley was killed and

notices were tacked up on the trees
that this would be the fate of all
““Jjumpers’’, and he wus left in the

trail, and nobody held an inquest or

cared anything about him.
Gentlemen, who killed Bouley? Let
us be fair about this; who killed him?

Was it Steve Adams? Why, Warden
Whitney, in his blundering, clumsy,
impossible way—he is about as del
icate as an elephant—told vou that
Adams said that he had the shell from
which the bullet ecame that killed
Tyler. But let it go. Nobody pays
any attention to what Whitney says
anyway. Of course, there were fifty
or sevety-five shots fired at Bouley,
80 nobody knows who did kill him
Who did it, gentlemen? Now, let
be fair about this for a minute. You
will be fair about it, I know. 1 never
yet saw twelve men that did not have
the common instinet of justice and
humanity down deep in them, and
you have got them, whether this is an
obscure town or not. Mr. Knight said
I would try to say something to hang
the Jury. I dont want to hang any-
body; he is the one that secks to
hang somebody; 1 am not looking for

us

any hanging, either of the Defendant
or of the Jury. If there is any one
man in this panel who would convier
Steve Adams in this case, if he knew
he was guilty, then, gentlemen, I have
missed my guess, that is all, and I
dont ‘‘size you up’’ right. If a fraud
like this couldl be consummated in any
Jury box in the United States, I have
rtol. something to learn. 1 dont believe

Trial of Civilization
Now, who killed Bouley? Let us see
sbout him. Fifty

shots were fired.
‘“confession’’

or seventy-five
If you take Adams’
there were at least four
men there, but if you were to take
Phillips’ evidence alone ,there were
fifty or seventy-five shots fired. Let us
remember something further than that
Eighteen or twenty men were gath-
ered together out in the woods, out in
the dense forest taking counsel among
themselves. as to how they would de-
fend their homes aguinst the jumpers,
met there just a few days before

cighteen or twenty of those sturdy
homesteaders, who have laid the foun
dation of the civiization of Ilaho—
not only of Tdahe, gentlemen, but of

every Btate in the Union; the same
kind of men who years ago landed
upon the bleak shores of New Eng

land and who slowly fought their way
aceross the continent, fought with the
Indiang fought with the' ' jumpers’’,
until they reached the State of Idaho

and there is not a graveyard that
has marked the whole course of this
eivilization that has not been filled

with ‘‘ jumpera'’, not one,
civilize a great

You eannot

nation by reading

two years and a half | hymn books alone, and it has not been

back bevond

Boone these men

lone that way. Awnay
the time of Daniel
with their trusty rifles lefended their
fireside and their homes agninst the
invaders, who would go over ther
to take them away. And T de say that
it was the gladdest news that ever
erossed the hills and the mountains
and the forests of the Marble Creek
distriet when it was announeed that

I should be glad to. 1 know that no

nen are all good or all bad., As Mr.
Knight's friend Nietzsche s ive, there
is a good deal of the wolf and the
wild beast about us. Ani when I
heard him pleading so hard for you

to hang Steve Adams, I felt dead sure
that it was true. Men are not all
good and they are not all bad; and
these men, who could leave the steam-
heated flats of the cities and go away
up here in the wilderness of Idabo,

with their wives and echillren, and
undergo the privations of men who
settle up a new eountry, would be
very apt to carry a gun along with

them to help settle it. And there has

not been a single part of Ameriea
that has been settled in any’ other
way; and they are good fellows too,

mighty good fellows,

Bloody Lord Angus

Here is what I am complaining of,
gentlemen, in this case—and 1 want
to know what you think about it—
Bouley was killed by the whole set-
tlement; however many men were ro-
sponsible for the speecific net, they
were all glad of it, and they all par-
ticipated in it, and they all brought
about the sentiment that killed him.
Is there any doubt about that?
When the news spread out over the
prairies, 1 take it that pretty nearly
every man there was glal of it; and
I take it that Mr. High Sheriff, Suth-
erland—who would “‘lick his echops
with ghoulish glee’’ if he could get at
Steve Adams’ blood—Mr. High Sheriff

Sutherland was as glad as anvbody
e¢lse, because he did not try to find
out who had committed the deed.
Oh, no, not Angus. He did not send
his Deputy Hicks, his Deputy Wil
linms or anybody else out to endeavor
to find out who killed Boulev. Bat
here is an idea, gentlemen, I want to
put to you twelve men. Adams did
not live in the Marble Creek country;
he was up there visiting Jack .‘-"-‘|-‘p-
kins; wvery likely he attended this

neeting; very likely Bouley was killed
by all the settlers up there, and when
George H. Root g upon the stand
and hedged, and quibbled and dodged,

it was pretty plain why-—because he
was in it, just the same as all the
rest of the settlers. They were all in
it, and they wamted to get rid of

Bouley, because day after day he was
leading some new men down for the
Barbour Lumber Company, to settle
on some other man’s home; today it
might be mine, tomorrow it might be
Newt, Glover’s; the next day it
might be Root's; the next day it might
be your's. Nobody knew when their
turn would come, and, of course, those
men were glad of his death. That
whole community was responsible for
the death of Tyler—if Tyler is dead—
and you twelve men are asked to pass
them all by, are you not?! You are
asked to leave Fred Engstrom, who
Bouley said was the man who was
after him—you are asked to leave
every settler in the Marble Creek
Distriet, you are asked to leave every
man out and at large, untouched and?
unharmed, every man in this section
of Tdaho, and visit the consequeces of
this erime of the killing of Bouley on
Steve Adams.

Now, do you think that is fairy’
All right; if you do, go ahead; you.
have got the power; nobody else ean,
hang a man legally in this country ex
cepting a Jury. If you want to have

it written down, for yourselves in
after vears to refleet upon, and vour
children and your children’s children
to point to im the future, that you
permitted the State of Lilaho to leave
every man at large, responsible for
Tyler’s death,, unprosecuted- and un
pursued, and you visited vour ven
geance upon this poor miner, all right,

You eannot find a man on the face of

the earth elsewhere who would do it
Better Made ldaho a Wilderress
Our friend Koight talks about ‘‘a
hung Jury '’ I never saw one mem
ber of this Jury before Do you sup-
pose & man who has anv knowledge of
the way men feel or think would have
any doubt about how n st man
would think or feel in a case like this
or what a business man wounld think
or feel, or what any unpr Heed man
would think or feel? o lemen, if
the farmers or the pe f lLdaho,
knowing that a large numbor of its
citizens were interested | this kil
ling, knowing that thev all pr | by
it, knowing that whenever a settlor
went home and went hed n rh
It safer b use Bouley was dend
knowing that he felt his property 1.
secure when this man was kill i
n Jury, knowing this, Ll v
in their hearts and in tl Cons nees
to pass all these men by inil single
mt this one vietim, less intersted tha
the rest, Yhen, gentlemes I would
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